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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of United Cooperative Assurance Company
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of United Cooperative Assurance Company — a Saudi Joint Stock Company (the
“Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
comprising material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other
standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants (“SOCPA”)
(referred to as “IFRS as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards), that is
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code’s requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 1 to the accompanying financial statements which indicates that the Company had
accumulated losses of Saudi Riyals 180.56 million as of 31 December 2023. Further, the Company’s solvency margin is
60.6% as of 31 December 2023, which is below the minimum solvency requirements as mandated by the Insurance
Authaority (“1A4”). The ability of the Company to improve its financial performance and meet the minimum solvency margin
requirements is dependent on the favourable outcome and realisation of the Company’s planned measures and actions
detailed further in Note 1. These events and conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1 to the
accompanying financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
In addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going concern section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the shareholders of United Cooperative Assurance Company

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Key audit matters — (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of estimates of present value of cashfiows, risk We performed the following procedures:

adjustment for non-financial risk and loss component-
insurance contract liabilities contracts

As at 31 December 2023, estimate of present value of
future cash flows, risk adjustment for non-financial risk and
loss component amounts to Saudi Riyals 215.88 million,
Saudi Riyals 9.86 million and Saudi Riyals 4.5 million (2022:
Saudi Riyals 203.52 million, Saudi Riyals 18.95 million and
Saudi Riyals 50.52 million) respectively, as reported in Note
10 to the financial statements.

The estimation of the liability for incurred claims and loss
component (forming part of liability for remaining
coverage) involves a significant degree of judgement. This
entails estimating the present value of future cash flows,
risk adjustment for non-financial risk and loss component.
The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is applied to the
present value of the estimated future cash flows, and
reflects the compensation that the Company requires for
bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of
the cash flows from non-financial risk as the Company fulfils
insurance contracts. The present value of future cash flows
are based on the best-estimate of the ultimate cost of all
claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date,
whether reported or not, together with the related claims
handling costs. The loss component is recognised if at any
time during the coverage period, facts and circumstances
indicate that a group of contracts is onerous Such less
component is remeasured at each reporting date as the
difference between the amounts of the fulfilments cash
flows determined under the general measurement model
relating to the future service and the carrying amount of
the liability for remaining coverage without the loss
component.

The Company uses an external actuary ("Appointed
Actuary”) to provide them with the estimate of such
liabilities. A range of methods were used to determine
these provisions which were based on a number of explicit
or implicit assumptions relating to the expected settlement
amount and settlement patterns of claims.

Understoed, evaluated and tested key controls around
the claims handling and provision setting processes.

Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the management's expert based on their
professional qualifications and experience and
assessed their independence.

Performed substantive tests, on sample basis, on the
amounts recorded for claims notified and paid;
including comparing the outstanding claims amount to
appropriate source documentation to evaluate the
valuation  of  outstanding  claim rEServes.

Assessed the integrity of data used as inputs into the
actuarial valuations, and tested on sample basis, the
accuracy of underlying claims data utilised by the
management's expert in estimating the present value
of the future cashflows, risk adjustment for non-
financial risk and loss component by comparing it to the
accounting and other records.

Involved our internal actuarial specialists to assess the
Company’'s methods and assumptions and evaluate the
Company's actuarial practices and  provisions
established including the actuarial report issued by
management's expert, by performing the following:

(i) Evaluated whether the Company's actuarial
methodologies were consistent with generally
accepted actuarial practices and with prior years.
We sought sufficient justification for any
significant differences;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of United Cooperative Assurance Company

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Key audit matters - {continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Accordingly, this complexity arises from calculating the
actuarial best estimate and the margin using historical data
which is sensitive to external inputs, such as claims cost
inflation, as well as the actuarial methodology that is
applied and the assumptions on current and future events.

Due to the inherent estimation uncertainty and subjectivity
invalved in the assessment of valuation of the liability for
incurred claims arising from insurance contracts and loss
component, we have considered this as a key audit matter,

Refer to Notes 3 and 4 for the material accounting policies
and significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions adopted by the Company, involved in the
initial recognition and subsequent measurement of
insurance contract liabilities. Also, refer to Note 10 for the
movement in insurance contract liabilities.

(i) Assessed key actuarial assumptions including clairms
ratios and expected frequency and severity of claims.
We tested these assumptions by comparing them
with our expectations based on the Company's
historical experience, current trends and our own
industry knowledge; and

(i) Assessed the appropriateness of the calculation
methods and approach along with the assumptions
used and sensitivity analysis performed.

(iv) Our internal specialists also performed independent
re-projections on present value of future cash flows,
risk adjustment for non-financial risk and loss
component for significant product lines to compare
them with the amounts recorded by management
and sought to understand any significant differences.

(v) Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the
related disclosures in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of United Cooperative Assurance Company

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Key audit matters - (continued)

Key audit matter
Adoption of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has adopted IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”, as endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (“IFRS 17"), which replaces
IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”, as endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia (“IFRS 4") and is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early
adoption permitted. IFRS 17 establishes principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance  contracts, reinsurance contracts and
investment contracts with direct participation features
(“DPF"). The Company has applied the full retrospective
approach to each group of insurance contracts.

The adoption of IFRS 17 resulted in a transition adjustment
to the Company's equity as at 1 lanuary 2022 amounting
to Saudi Riyals 18.65 million. IFRS 17 introduced new
nomenclature for significant insurance-related balances as
well as new measurement principles for insurance-related
liabilities and insurance revenue recognition.

Further, during the year, the Company also adopted IFRS
9 “Financial Instruments”, as endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia (“IFRS 9”) which replaces 1AS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, as
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (“IAS 39"). The
Company had applied the temporary exemption from IFRS
9 for annual periods before 1 January 2023. For the
transition to IFRS 9, the Company applied a retrospective
approach to be in line with the transition option adopted
under IFRS 17 while applying the relevant practical
expedients under IFRS 9. The adoption of IFRS 9 resulted
in a transition adjustment to the Company's equity as at 1
January 2022 amounting to Saudi Riyals 41.08 million.

IFRS 9 also required the management to assess its business
model with respect to different portfolios of investments
that drive the measurement and disclosures of the
Company's investments. It also introduced the concept of
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) which is a forward-looking
estimate of credit losses for the Company's financial
assets.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
We performed the following procedures:

Obtained an understanding of the Company's
implementation process for determining the impact of
adoption of the standards, including understanding of
the changes to the Company's accounting policies,
systems, processes and controls.

Evaluated and assessed management's process to
identify insurance contracts, to determine the
appropriate Companying for such contracts and to
determine whether the use of the premium allocation
approach (“PAA”) under IFRS 17 was appropriate.

Evaluated whether management’s allocation of
expenses under IFRS 17 was appropriate and tested, on
a sample basis, such expenses.

Evaluated the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
under IFRS 17 and tested, on a sample basis, the
underlying data supporting the adjustment.

Evaluated and assessed management’s conclusions
regarding the Company’s business model for different
portfolios of investments and the appropriatengss of
the Company’s determination of ECL under IFRS S.

Assessed the adequacy of the transition adjustments
impact for both IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 on the opening
accumulated losses as at 1 January 2022,

Assessed the appropriateness of the transition and
accounting policies disclosures in relation to IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 made in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the shareholders of United Cooperative Assurance Company
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Key audit matters - (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Due to first year adoption, which resulted in fundamental #  Assessed the Company's methods, assumptions and

changes to classification and measurement of the main accounting policies adopted under IFRS 17 and IFRS §,
transactions and balances of the Company along with with the assistance of our actuarial and accounting
significant changes to presentation and disclosures that specialists and experts,

were required in the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023, we have considered this as a
key audit matter.

Refer to Notes 3 and 4 for accounting policy and significant
accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
adopted by the Company.

The impact of transition is explained in Note 5 to the
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of United Cooperative Assurance Company

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Key audit matters - (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment of Goodwill

As of 31 December 2023, carrying value of the goodwill
amounted to Saudi Riyals 78.4 million, which represents
the fair value of the consideration paid in excess of the fair
value of assets and liabilities acquired as described in note
14

For impairment testing, assets are grouped into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash flows from
continuing use (cash-generating unit or CGU), which are
largely independent of other assets or other CGUs.

Management engaged an independent expert to carry out
an impairment exercise as at 31 December 2023 in respect
of goodwill by determining a recoverable amount based
on market multiple approach and the value-in-use derived
from a discounted cashflow model, which was based on
the most recent business plan prepared by the
management.

We considered the impairment assessment of goodwill as
a key audit matter due to significant judgments and
assumptions made by the management in determining the
appropriate carrying values.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We performed the following procedures:

Obtained an understanding of management's
process and the methodology for the impairment
assessment of goodwill;

Evaluated the appropriateness of  the
methodology used by an external specialist
("management's expert") to assess the
impairment of goodwill and conclusion reached
therein;

Evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management's external expert
based on their professional qualifications and
experience and assessed their independence.

Assessed the reliability and relevance of data
used to calculate value-in-use calculations;

Engaged our specialist to assess the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used in
the value in use calculation; and

Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of
the related disclosures in  the financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of United Cooperative Assurance Company
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, when made available to us, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with govemnance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS as endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies, the
Company’s By-laws and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, i.e. the Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the shareholders of United Cooperative Assurance Company
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of financlal statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
matarial misstatemant, whethar dus to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ repert that includes our opinion.
Reasanable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

[ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and cbtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

# Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal contral.

P Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

# Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

? tvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit of the Company.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of United Cooperative Assurance Company

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of financial statements — (continued)
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report hecause
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASAT 31 DECEMBER 2023
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals’ 000 unless otherwise stated)

Asat Asat
Asat 31 December 1 January 2022
31 December 2022 (Restated —  (Restated — Notes
Note 2023 Notes 3 and 5) 3and5)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaents 6 122,279 83,964 87,753
Term deposits 7 101,041 - -
Investments:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") 8 246 23,890 25,213
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI™) 8 43,463 39,703 37,032
Financial assets at amortised cost 8 130,113 229,216 229,579
Prepaid expenses and other assets 9 58,059 48,912 42,016
Reinsurance contract assets 10 - 147,386 158,827
Right-of-use assets 11 4,161 6,178 7,089
Property and equipment 12 7,343 10,482 9,122
Intangible assets 13 23,194 12,715 9,813
Goodwill 14 78,400 78,400 78,400
Statutory deposit 15 59,989 59,989 59,989
Accrued commission income on statutory deposit 15 1,558 6,711 5,395
TOTAL ASSETS 629,846 747,546 750,228
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities 10 285,885 439,815 386,406
Reinsurance contract liabilities 10 27,709 - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 16 20,352 16,534 19,694
Leaseliabilities 11 3,777 5,841 6,187
Employees' benefit obligations 17 11,543 9,686 10,029
Provision for zakat and income tax 24 13,867 12,308 14,846
Accrued income payable to Insurance Authority 15 1,558 6,711 5,395
TOTAL LIABILITIES 364,691 491,395 442,557
EQUITY
Share capita 18 400,000 400,000 400,000
Accumulated losses (180,562) (185,854) (130,372)
Fair value reserve for investments 8 41,540 37,780 35,109
Remeasurement reserve of employees' benefit
obligations 17 4,177 4,225 2,934
TOTAL EQUITY 265,155 256,151 307,671
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY 629,846 747,546 750,228
The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
——
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals’ 000 unless otherwise stated)

Y ear ended 31 December

2022 (Restated —
Note 2023 Notes 3 and 5)
Insurance revenue 19 1,061,771 634,333
Insurance service expenses 19 (625,322) (339,671)
Net expense from reinsurance contracts 19 (409,332 (337,632
Insurance serviceresult from Company’sdirectly written business 27,117 (42,970)
Share of surplus from insurance pool 22 13,833 14,196
Total insurance service result 40,950 (28,774)
Commission income from financial assets not measured at FVTPL 20 9,413 8,113
Net gains on financial assets measured at FVTPL 20 741 (1,323)
Dividend income 20 - 187
Net investment income 10,154 6,977
Finance (costs) / income from insurance contracts issued 21 (4,709) 1,812
Finance income / (costs) from reinsurance contracts held 21 2,016 (212
Net insurance finance (costs) / income (2,693) 1,600
Net insurance and investment result 48,411 (20,197)
Other income 4,767 1,160
Other operating expenses 23 (43,616) (33,445)
Profit / (loss) for the year before zakat and income tax 9,562 (52,482)
Zakat and income tax expense 24 (4,270) (3,000)
NET PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS 5,292 (55,482)
Basic and diluted earnings/ (losses) per share (expressed in Saudi
Riyals per share) 25 0.13 (1.39)
The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
e
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals’ 000 unless otherwise stated)

Y ear ended 31 December

2022 (Restated —
Note 2023 Notes 3 and 5)
NET PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS 5,292 (55,482)
Other comprehensiveincome;
Itemsthat will not be reclassified to the statement of incomein
subsequent years:
Net changesin fair value of investment measured at FV OCI — equity
instruments 3,760 2,671
Remeasurement (loss) / gain on employees’ benefit obligations 17 (48) 1,291
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 9,004 (51,520)
The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
—
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals’ 000 unless otherwise stated)

Balance at 31 December 2022 (Restated — Notes 3 and 5)

Total comprehensiveincome for the year:

Net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders

Net changesin fair value of investment measured at FVOCI

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensiveincome for the year attributable to the shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2023

The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer

Remeasur ement
reserve of
employees
Share  Accumulated Fair valuereserve benefit
Note capital losses  for investments obligations Total
400,000 (185,854) 37,780 4,225 256,151
- 5,292 - - 5,292
- - 3,760 - 3,760
R - - (48) (48)
- 5,292 3,760 (48) 9,004
400,000 (180,562) 41,540 4,177 265,155
e
o ;
Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals’ 000 unless otherwise stated)

Remeasurement

reserve of

employees

Share  Accumulated Fair valuereserve benefit
Note capital losses for investments obligations Total
Balance at 31 December 2021, as previously presented 400,000 (2149,752) (133) 2,934 253,049
Impact of adopting IFRS 17 5 - 18,645 - - 18,645
Impact of adopting IFRS 9 5 - 735 35,242 - 35,977
Balance at 1 January 2022 (Restated — Notes 3 and 5) 400,000 (130,372) 35,109 2,934 307,671

Total comprehensiveincome/ (loss) for theyear - (Restated — Notes 3 and 5):
Net loss for the year attributable to the shareholders - (55,482) - - (55,482)
Net changesin fair value of investment measured at FVOCI - - 2,671 - 2,671
Other comprehensive income - - - 1,291 1,291
Total comprehensive (loss) / incomefor theyear attributabletotheshareholders- (Restated
—Notes 3 and 5) - (55,482) 2,671 1,291 (51,520)
Balance at 31 December 2022 (Restated — Notes 3 and 5) 400,000 (185,854) 37,780 4,225 256,151
The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
i
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman

15
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals’ 000 unless otherwise stated)

Zakat paid

31 December 2022
(Restated - Notes 3

Note 31 December 2023 and 5)
CASH FLOWSFROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Total profit / (loss) for the year before zakat and income tax 9,562 (52,482)
Adjustmentsfor non-cash items:
Depreciation of property and equipment 12 3,339 4,162
Amortization of intangible assets 13 1,051 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 11 2,686 2,798
Finance costs on lease liabilities 11 177 238
Unrealized (gain) / loss on financial assets measured at FVTPL 8 (14) 1,323
Realized gain on financial assets measured at FVTPL 8 (727) -
Commission income from financial assets measured at amortised cost (1,938) 363
Provision for employees benefit obligations 17 2,461 2,464
(Gain) / loss on disposal of property and equipment (24) 98
16,573 (41,036)
Changesin operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other assets (9,147) (6,896)
Changes in reinsurance contract assets 147,386 11,441
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,818 (3,160)
Changes in insurance contract liabilities (153,930) 53,409
Changes in reinsurance contract liabilities 27,709 -
Cash generated from operations 32,409 13,758
Employees benefit obligations paid 17 (652) (1,516)
24 (3,211) (5,038)
Net cash generated from operating activities 28,546 7,204
CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of financial assetsheld at FVTPL 8 24,385 -
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 24 -
Payments for purchases of property and equipment 12 (5,462) (5,522)
Payments for purchases of intangible assets 13 (6,268) (2,902
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 12,679 (8,424)
—
it
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals unless’ 000 otherwise stated)

31 December 2022
(Restated — Notes 3
Note 31 December 2023 and 5)
CASH FLOWSFROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liability 11 (2,910) (2,569)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,910) (2,569)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 38,315 (3,789)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6 83,964 87,753
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 6 122,279 83,964
Supplemental schedule of non-cash information
Net changesin fair value of investment measured at FVOCI 8 3,760 2,671
Transfer from capital work in progress 12 5,262 -
The accompanying notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
W o
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COM PANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEM BER 2023

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals *000 unless otherwise stated)

1 General information - legal statusand principal activities
€)) General information

United Cooperative Assurance Company (“the Company”) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company registered in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration No. 4030179955 dated 6 Jamad-al-Thani 1429H, corresponding to 6 June
2008.

The registered office address of the Company is:

Al-Saedan Building;

King Fahd Road

P.O. Box 2041

Riyadh 11491

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The activities of the Company are to transact cooperative insurance and reinsurance operations and related activitiesin the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. On 29 Rabi Al Thani 1429H (5 May 2008), the Company received a license number
(NMT/19/200812) from the Saudi Central Bank (“SAMA”) which is currently valid up to 29 Dhul Hijja 1445H
corresponding to 6 July 2024 to engage in insurance business in Saudi Arabia. The Company started its operations on 1
January 2009. On 11 February 2020 corresponding to 17 Jamad-ul-Thani 1441H, the Company has received SAMA
approval upon the Company’s request for the cancellation of its Reinsurance License. From the date of SAMA Approval,
the Company has hot assumed any reinsurance business.

From 23 November 2023 the Insurance Authority (I1A) became the authorized regulator of the insurance industry in Saudi
Arabia, however, laws and regulationsissued previously by SAMA related to the insurance sector will remain in effect until
further instructions are issued by the IA. The Company was listed on the Saudi Stock Exchange on 23 May 2007. The
Company started its operations on 1 January 2009. The Company is fully owned by the general public and Saudi
shareholders.

The new Companies Law issued through Royal Decree M/132 on 01/12/1443H (corresponding to 30 September 2022)
(hereinafter referred as "the New Law”) came into force on 26/06/1444 H (corresponding to 19 January 2023) as well as
the amended implementing regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority (CMA) based on the New Law. For certain
provisions of the New Law and the amended CMA implementing regulations, full compliance is expected not later than
two years from 26/6/1444H (corresponding to 19 January 2023). The management isin process of assessing the impact of
the New Law and will amend its By-laws with the amendments in the provisions required to align with the provisions of
the New Law and the amended CMA implementing regulations, and with any other amendments that may take advantage
of the New Law and the amended CMA implementing regulations. Consequently, the Company shall present the amended
By-laws, within the timeframe alowed, to the shareholders in its Extraordinary General Assembly meeting for their
ratification.

(b) Going concer n assessment

The Company has accumulated losses of Saudi Riyals 180.56 million as of 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
accumulated losses of Saudi Riyals 185.85 million). Further, the Company’s solvency margin of 60.6% as at 31 December
2023 (31 December 2022: 41.16%) remains below the minimum solvency requirements as mandated by I nsurance Authority
(1A).

Under Article 68 2(b) of the Implementing Regulations of the Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law (the
“Regulations™), when the solvency margin falls between 50% and 75% of the required margin, the Company shall restore its
solvency margin to the required level. If the required solvency margin is not restored to its appropriate level for two
consecutive quarters, the Company will be required by 1A to immediately take all or any of the measuresincluding formulate
and provide the Authority with a corrective action plan to be taken and the period necessary to restore its solvency The
Company received correspondence from | A requiring the Company to submit its rectification measures according to Article
68 of the Regulations. In response to IA’s correspondence, the Company submitted its planned rectification measures which
included arightsissue of Saudi Riyals 300 million (30 million new shares).
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals 000 unless otherwise stated)

1 General information - legal statusand principal activities (continued)
(b) Going concern assessment (continued)

Management has formulated and implemented various performance improvement measures starting late 2022, as approved
by the Company’s Board of Directors, which, among others, include better pricing strategies for Motor segments. Such
measures have resulted in better results and the Company has earned total profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 of
Saudi Riyals5.29 million (Lossfor the year ended 31 December 2022 was Saudi Riyals 55.48 million). Management expects
that this will further reflect positively in the operational results and cash flows for 2024 and the years to come. Also, the
Company is actively exploring potential merger opportunities within the insurance sector. In the event that a mutually
beneficial merger agreement cannot be reached, the Company intends to further increase its share capital by Saudi Riyals
300 million through rights issue which will further boost up its solvency ratio. However, management's assessment and
realisation of its planned measures and actions outlined in the business plan is dependent on a number of factors, estimates
and assumptions including the achievement of the projected improvement in the results of the Motor segment and achieving
the desired solvency ratios. Accordingly, these events and conditions including realisation of planned measures and actions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Notwithstanding the above, the financia statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as management believes
that the Company will be both, able to continue its operations and meet its obligations, as they fall due within the next 12
months as reflected in the detailed business plan and projected cash flows for the years from 2024 to 2028. Further,
management believes that it will be able to meet the solvency regquirements based on the plan outlined above. Management
continues to monitor performance indicators of all lines of business and prevailing market conditions and will take the
necessary corrective actions and amend its business plan, if necessary.

2. Basis of preparation
a) Satement of Compliance

These financia statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financia Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabiaand other standards and pronouncementsissued by The
Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants (“SOCPA”) (“IFRS that are endorsed in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia”). This is the first full set of the Company’s financial statements in which IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts
(“IFRS 17”) and IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) as endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia have been applied and
the resultant changes to the significant judgments, estimates and accounting policies are described in Note 3 and Note 4.
Comparative information was restated due to the adoption of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9.

Asrequired by the Saudi Arabian Insurance Regulations “I A Implementation Regulations”, the Company maintains separate
books of accounts for Insurance Operations and Shareholders” Operations. Accordingly, assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses attributable to either operation are recorded in the respective accounts. The statement of financial position,
statements of income, comprehensive income and cash flows of the insurance operations and shareholders operations which
are presented in Note 30 have been provided as supplementary information to comply with requirements of the 1A
Implementing Regulations and is not required by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

In preparing the Company’s financial statements in compliance with IFRS as endorsed in KSA, the balances and transactions
of the insurance operations are amalgamated and combined with those of the shareholders’ operations. Inter-operation
balances, transactions and unrealized gains and losses, if any, are eliminated in full during amalgamation. The accounting
policies adopted for the insurance operations and shareholders’ operations are uniform for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances.

In accordance with the requirements of the Regulations issued by IA and as per by-laws of the Company, shareholders of

the Company are to receive 90% of the annual surplus from insurance operations and the policyholders are to receive the
remaining 10%. Any deficit arising from insurance operations is transferred to the shareholders’ operations in full.
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COM PANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEM BER 2023

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals *000 unless otherwise stated)

2. Basisof preparation (continued)
(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared under the going concern basis and the historical cost convention, except as described
in respective policiesin Note 3.

(c) Basis of Presentation

The Company’s statement of financial position is not presented using a current/non-current classification and is presented
in order of liquidity. However, the following balances would generally be classified as current; cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets at FVTPL, prepaid expenses and other assets, accrued income on statutory deposit, accrued expenses and
other liabilities, provision for zakat and accrued income payableto |A. The following balances would generally be classified
as non-current:, financial assets at FVOCI, financial assets at amortised cost, property and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets, statutory deposit, and employees’ benefit obligations. The balances which are of mixed in nature i.e.
include both current and non-current portionsinclude term deposits, insurance contract liahilities, reinsurance contract assets
and lease liabilities.

(d) Functional and presentation currency

The financia statements are expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals (“Saudi Riyals”) which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company.

(e) Seasonality of operations
There are no seasonal changes that may affect insurance operations of the Company.
(f) Changesin products and services

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no significant changes in products or services and their terms of the
insurance contracts offered by the Company. Refer Note 5 for details regarding impact of adoption of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9.

3.  Material accounting policies

The material accounting policies used in the preparation of these financia statements are consistently applied for all years
presented. Refer Note 3.1 for details relating to adoption of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9.

31 New or amended standards adopted by the Company

A number of new or amended standards became applicable for the current reporting period and the Company had to change
its accounting policies as aresult of adopting the following standards:

a) IFRS 17 Insurance contracts (“IFRS 177),
IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’ and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with
early adoption permitted. IFRS 17 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of

insurance contracts, reinsurance contracts and investment contracts with direct participation features (“DPF”).

On transition to IFRS 17, the Company has applied the full retrospective approach to all insurance contracts issued and
reinsurance contracts held. Therefore, on transition date, 1 January 2022, the Company:

- has identified, recognised and measured each group of insurance contracts as if IFRS 17 had always applied;

- derecognised any existing balances that would not exist had IFRS 17 always applied; and
- recognised any resulting net difference in equity.
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals 000 unless otherwise stated)

3. Material accounting policies (continued)

31 New or amended standar ds adopted by the Company (Continued)

The new accounting policies and the impact of the adoption of IFRS 17 are disclosed in Notes 3.3 and 5.1, respectively.
b) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 97).

IFRS9replaces| AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and M easurement and was effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. However, the Company had met the relevant criteria and had applied the temporary exemption
from IFRS 9 for annual periods before 1 January 2023. For transition to IFRS 9, the Company applied a retrospective
approach to be in line with transition option adopted under IFRS 17 while applying the relevant practical expedients under
IFRS 9. The new accounting policies and the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 are disclosed in Notes 3.4 and 5.2,
respectively.

A number of other amendments became applicable for the current reporting period i.e. for reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023. The Company did not have to change its accounting policies or make retrospective adjustments as a
result of adopting these amendments which are described below:

Interpretation Description
Amendment to IAS 12 - These amendments give companies temporary relief from accounting for deferred taxes arising from
International tax reform the Minimum Tax Implementation Handbook international tax reform. The amendments also

introduce targeted disclosure requirements for affected companies. The Company did not identify
an impact as aresult of these amendments.

Amendment to IAS 12 These amendments require companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial
‘Taxation” (“IAS 12”) — recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. The
deferred tax related to assets Company did not identify an impact as aresult of these amendments.
and liabilities arising from a
single transaction

Narrow scope amendments to The amendments aim to improve accounting policy disclosures and to help users of the financial
IAS 1, IFRS Practice statements to distinguish between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
Statement 2 and IAS 8 policies. The Company did not identify an impact as aresult of these amendments.

3.2 New standar ds, amendments and interpretations not yet applied by the Company

Certain new standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial
statements are listed below. The listing is of standards and interpretations issued, which the Company reasonably expects
to be applicable at a future date. Management is in the process of assessing the impact of such new standards and
interpretations on its financial statements. The Company intends to adopt these interpretations when they are effective.

Inter pretation Description Effective date

Amendment to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’  These amendments include requirements for sale and leaseback Annual periods beginning on
(“IFRS 16”) — Leaseson sdleand  transactions in IFRS 16 to explain how an entity accounts for a or after 1 January 2024
|easeback sale and leaseback after the date of the transaction. Sale and

leaseback transactions where some or al the lease payments are

variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are

most likely to be impacted.

Amendmentsto IAS 1 - Non- These amendments clarify how conditions with which an entity Annual periods beginning on

current liabilitieswith covenants  must comply within twelve months after the reporting period  or after 1 January 2024
affect the classification of aliability.
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEM BER 2023

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals *000 unless otherwise stated)

3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.2 New standards, amendments and inter pretations not yet applied by the Company (continued)

I nterpretation Description Effective date
Amendment to TIAS 7 ‘Cash flow  These amendments require disclosures to enhance the Annua periods beginning on

statements’ (“IAS 7”) and IFRS  transparency of supplier finance arrangements and their effectson or after 1 January 2024

7 ‘Financial instruments: an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.
Disclosures (“IFRS 77) — The disclosure requirements are the IASB’s response to investors’
Supplier finance concerns that some companies’ supplier finance arrangements are

not sufficiently visible, hindering investors’ analysis.

Amendments to TAS 21 ‘Foreign ~ An entity is impacted by the amendments when it has a Annua periods beginning on
currencies’ (“IAS 217) - Lack transaction or an operation in a foreign currency that is not or after 1 January 2025.
of Exchangeability exchangeable into another currency at a measurement date for a
specified purpose. A currency is exchangeable when there is an
ability to obtain the other currency (with anormal administrative
delay), and the transaction would take place through a market or
exchange mechanism that creates enforceable rights and
obligations.

Impact assessment

The management is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on its financial statements, however, no
material impact is expected.

3.3 Insurance and reinsur ance contr acts

i. Classification and summary of measurement models

The Company issues insurance contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts where the
insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified
uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. Cash flows from insurance contracts are split into Liability for
Incurred Claims (“LIC”) and Liability for Remaining Coverage (“LRC”). As a general guideline, the Company defines
significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least
10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

The Company issues non-life insurance to individual s and businesses. Non-life insurance products offered include medical,
motor, liability, engineering, general accident, fire and marine. These products offer protection of policyholder’s assets and
indemnification of other parties that have suffered damage as a result of a policyholder’s accident. The Company does not
issue any contracts with direct participating features.

In the norma course of business, the Company uses reinsurance to mitigate its risk exposures. A reinsurance contract
transfers significant risk if it transfers substantially al of the insurance risk resulting from the insured portion of the
underlying insurance contracts, even if it does not expose the reinsurer to the possibility of a significant loss.

None of theinsurance contractsissued by the Company contain embedded derivatives, investment components or any other
goods and services.

ii. Level of aggregation

The Company identifies portfolios of insurance contracts. Each portfolio comprises contractsthat are subject to similar risks
and managed together, and is divided into three groups:

- Any contracts that are onerous on initial recognition;

- Any contracts that, on initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequently; and
- Any remaining contracts in the portfolio.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.3 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

The portfolios are further divided by year of issue.

Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation separately from portfolios of insurance contractsissued.
Applying the grouping requirements to reinsurance contracts held, the Company aggregates reinsurance contracts held
concluded within a calendar year (annual cohorts) into groups of: (i) contracts for which there is a net gain at initial
recognition, if any; (ii) contracts for which, at initial recognition, there is no significant possibility of a net gain arising
subsequently; and (iii) remaining contractsin the portfolio, if any.

Reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation requirements on an individual contract basis. The Company tracks
internal management information reflecting historical experiences of such contracts’ performance. This information is used
for setting pricing of these contracts such that they result in reinsurance contracts held in a net cost position without a
significant possibility of a net gain arising subsequently.

The Company assumesthat no contracts are onerousat initial recognition, unlessfacts and circumstancesindicate otherwise.
If facts and circumstances indicate that some contracts are onerous, an additional assessment is performed to distinguish
onerous contracts from non-onerous ones. For non-onerous contracts, the Company assesses the likelihood of changes in
the applicable facts and circumstances in the subsequent periods in determining whether contracts have a significant
possibility of becoming onerous. This assessment is performed at a policyholder-pricing-groups level.

iii. Recognition

The Company recognises a group of insurance contracts issued from the earliest of the following:

- The beginning of the coverage period of the group of contracts.

- The date when the first payment from a policyholder in the group becomes due. If there is no contractual due date,
then it is considered to be the date when the first payment is received from the policyholder.

- For agroup of onerous contracts, the date when facts and circumstances indicate that the group to which an insurance
contract will belong is onerous.

The Company recognises a group of reinsurance contracts held it has entered into from the earlier of the following:

- For reinsurance contracts that provide proportionate coverage, at the later of:
(i) the beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsurance contracts and

(i) theinitial recognition of any underlying contract.

- All other groups of reinsurance contracts held are recognised from the beginning of the coverage period of the group
of reinsurance contracts,

However, if the Company entered into the reinsurance contract held at or before the date when an onerous group of
underlying contractsis recognised prior to the beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsurance contracts held,
the reinsurance contract held, in this case, is recognised at the same time as the group of underlying insurance contracts is
recognised.

Only contracts that individually meet the recognition criteria by the end of the reporting period are included in the groups.
When contracts meet the recognition criteria in the groups after the reporting date, they are added to the groups in the
reporting period in which they meet the recognition criteria, subject to the annual cohorts restriction. Composition of the
groups is not reassessed in subsequent periods.

iv. Contract boundaries
The measurement of a group of contracts includes all of the future cash flows within the boundary of each contract in the
group. Cash flows are within the boundary of a contract if they arise from substantive rights and obligations that exist

during the reporting period under which the Company can compel the policyholder to pay premiums or has a substantive
obligation to provide services.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)
iv. Contract boundaries (continued)

A substantive obligation to provide services ends when:

i) The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policyholder and can set a price or
level of benefits that fully reflects those reassessed risks; or

i) Both of the following criteria are satisfied

- TheCompany hasthe practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio that contains the contract and can set aprice
or level of benefitsthat fully reflects the risks of that portfolio; and

- the pricing of the premiums for coverage up to the reassessment date does not take into account risks that relate to
periods after the reassessment date.

The contract boundary is reassessed at each reporting date and, therefore, may change over time.

V. Measurement

The general measurement model (GMM), also known as the building block approach, consists of the fulfilment cash flows
and the contractual service margin. Thisis the default model under IFRS 17 to measure insurance contracts. However, the
Premium Allocation Approach (PAA), which is a simplified measurement model, is permitted if, and only if, a the
inception of the group:

- The entity reasonably expects that such simplification would produce a measurement of the liability for remaining
coverage for the group that would not differ materialy from the one that would be produced applying the general
measurement model requirements or

- The coverage period of each contract in the group (including insurance contract services arising from al premiums
within the contract boundary determined at that date) is one year or less.

The Company uses the PAA to simplify the measurement of groups of contracts on the following bases:
e |nsurance contracts:

The coverage period of medical, motor, property, fire, marine and general accident contracts in the group of contracts is
one year or less and are therefore eligible to be measured under the PAA.

PAA €ligibility testing has been performed for the engineering and liability group of contracts. The Company reasonably
expects that the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage for the group containing those contracts under the
PAA would not differ materially from the measurement that would be produced applying the general measurement model.
In ng materiality, the Company has also considered qualitative factors such as the nature of the risk and types of its
lines of business.

° Reinsurance contracts:

The Company reasonably expects that the resulting measurement under the PAA measurement model would not differ
materialy from the result of applying the general measurement model .

The Company does not apply the PAA if, at the inception of the group of contracts, it expects significant variability in the
fulfilment cash flows that would affect the measurement of the liability for the remaining coverage during the year before
aclaimisincurred.

Measurement on initial recognition under PAA:

On initial recognition of each group of insurance contracts that are not onerous, the carrying amount of the liability for
remaining coverage (“LRC”) is measured at the premiums received on initial recognition less any insurance acquisition
cash flows paid.

For reinsurance contracts held, on initial recognition, the Company measures the remaining coverage at the amount of
ceding premiums paid.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.3 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)
V. Measurement (continued)

Oninitial recognition of each group of insurance contracts, the Company assesses the time between providing each part of
the coverage and the related premium due date. If the period is no more than a year i.e. no significant financing component
exists, the Company does not adjust the carrying amount of the LRC and ARC to reflect the time value of money and the
effect of financial risk using the discount rates.

Subsequent measurement under PAA:
The carrying amount of a group of insurance contractsissued at the end of each reporting period is the sum of:

a. theLRC;and
b. theLIC, comprising the fulfilment cash flows (“FCF”) related to past service alocated to the group at the reporting
date.

The carrying amount of a group of reinsurance contracts held at the end of each reporting period is the sum of:
a theremaining coverage; and
b. theincurred claims, comprising the FCF related to past service alocated to the group at the reporting date

For insurance contracts issued, at each of the subsequent reporting dates, the LRC is:

a increased for premiumsreceived in the year, excluding amountsthat relate to premium receivablesincluded inthe LIC;

b. decreased for insurance acquisition cash flows paid in the year

c. decreased for the amounts of expected premium receipts recognised as insurance revenue for the services provided in
the year;

d. increased for the amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows in the year recognised asinsurance service expenses,
and

e. increased for any adjustment to the financing component, where applicable.

For reinsurance contracts held, at each of the subsequent reporting dates, the remaining coverageis.

a. increased for ceding premiums paid in the year; and

b. decreased for the expected amounts of ceding premiums and broker fees recognised as reinsurance expenses for the
services received in the year.

The Company estimates the liahility for incurred claims as the fulfilment cash flows related to incurred claims. Fulfilment
cash flows comprise estimates of future cash flows, an adjustment to reflect the time value of money and the financial risks
related to future cash flows, to the extent that the financial risks are not included in the estimates of future cash flows, and
arisk adjustment for non-financial risk.

The Company’s objective in estimating future cash flows is to determine the expected value of a range of scenarios that
reflects the full range of possible outcomes. The cash flows from each scenario are discounted and weighted by the
estimated probability of that outcome to derive an expected present value. If there are significant interdependencies between
cash flowsthat vary based on changesin market variables and other cash flows, then the Company uses stochastic modelling
techniques to estimate the expected present value. Stochastic modelling involves projecting future cash flows under alarge
number of possible economic scenarios for market variables such asinterest rates and equity returns. The determination of
the discount rate that reflects the characteristics of the cash flows and liquidity characteristics of the insurance contracts
reguires significant judgement and estimation, which are covered in Note 3.4 (ii).
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.3 Insuranceand reinsurance contracts (continued)
V. Measurement (continued)

The fulfilment cash flows are adjusted for the time value of money and the effect of financial risk (using current estimates)
if the liability for incurred claimsis also adjusted for the time value of money and the effect of financia risk.

Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually damaged) assets acquired in settling a claim (for example,
salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example,
subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included in the estimates of claims liability asit can reasonably be recovered from the
disposal of the asset.

Onerous contract assessment:

If at any time during the coverage period, facts and circumstances indicate that a group of contracts is onerous, then the
Company recognises alossin insurance service expense and increases the liability for remaining coverage to the extent that
the current estimates of the fulfilment cash flows, determined under the GMM, that relate to remaining coverage (including
the risk adjustment for non-financial risk) exceed the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage. A loss
component will be established for the amount of the |oss recognised. Subsequently, the loss component will be remeasured
at each reporting date as the difference between the amounts of the fulfilments cash flows determined under the GMM
relating to the future service and the carrying amount of the LRC without the loss component.

Where the Company recognises aloss on initial recognition of an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts or when
further onerous underlying insurance contracts are added to a group, the Company establishes a loss-recovery component
of the asset for remaining coverage for agroup of reinsurance contracts held depicting the recovery of losses. The Company
calculates the loss-recovery component by multiplying the loss recognised on the underlying insurance contracts and the
percentage of claims on the underlying insurance contracts the Company expects to recover from the group of reinsurance
contracts held. The loss-recovery component adjusts the carrying amount of the asset for remaining coverage.

When underlying insurance contracts are included in the same group with insurance contracts issued that are not reinsured,
the Company applies a systematic and rational method of allocation to determine the portion of losses that relates to
underlying insurance contracts.

Non-performance risk (NPR) adjustment:

The Company measures the estimates of the present value of future cash flows using assumptions that are consistent with
those used to measure the estimates of the present value of future cash flows for the underlying insurance contracts, with
an adjustment for any risk of non-performance by the reinsurer. The effect of the non-performance risk of the reinsurer is
assessed at each reporting date and the effect of changes in the non-performance risk is recognised in profit or loss.

Vi. De-recognition and contract modification

The Company derecognises a contract when it is extinguished i.e. when the specified obligations in the contract expire or
are discharged or cancelled. The Company also derecognises a contract if its terms are modified in a way that would have
changed the accounting for the contract significantly had the new terms always existed, in which case a new contract based
on the modified terms is recognised. If a contract modification does not result in derecognition, then the Company treats
the changes in cash flows caused by the modification as changes in the estimates of fulfilment cash flows. There were no
instances of modification or derecognition identified for the year ended 31 December 2023.

vii.  Acquisition & Attributable Cost

Insurance acquisition cash flows are the costs that directly associated with selling and handling acquired businesses. The
company considers underwriting, sales, and regulatory levies as acquisition costs. Acquisition costs are not expensed when
incurred and are deferred over the life of the insurance contract. While attributable costs are the costs that can fully or
partially attributed to the insurance operations. The Company has in place allocation technique to alocate the costs based
on direct to indirect costs ratio. Both acquisition and attributable costs fall under the insurance service expense while the
non-attributable costs are reported under other operating expenses.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Insuranceand reinsurance contracts (continued)
viii.  Risk adjustments for non-financial risk

The Company has decided to adopt the Vaue at risk method on incurred claims for the estimation of risk adjustment. The
Company has chosen a confidence level based on the 75th percentile of the distribution of the claim reserves, considering
this level is adequate to cover sources of uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows. While for premium
risk, Solvency |l approach is used to derive the risk with the same percentile as the claim reserves.

iX. Presentation

Groups of insurance contracts that are assets and those that are liabilities, and groups of reinsurance contractsthat are assets
and those that are liabilities, are presented separately in the statement of financial position. The Company recognised in the
statement of income (a) an insurance service result, comprising insurance revenue and insurance service expenses and net
income / (expenses) from reinsurance contract, and (b) insurance finance income or expenses.

The Company does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk between the insurance service
result and insurance finance income or expenses. All changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk are included in
the insurance service result.

Insurance revenue:

The insurance revenue for each year is the amount of expected premium receipts for providing coverage in the period. The
Company allocates the expected premium receipts to each period on the passage of time.

I nsurance service expenses:

Insurance service expenses include the following:

a. incurred claimsfor the year.

b. other incurred directly attributable expenses.

¢. insurance acquisition cash flows amortization.

d. changes that relate to past service — changes in the FCF relating to the LIC.

e. changesthat relate to future service— changesin the FCF that result in onerous contract | osses or reversal s of those osses.

For contracts measured under the PAA, amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows is based on the passage of time
for all groups of contracts except for longer term policies under engineering and liability groups for which amortisation is
done based on the expected timing of incurred insurance service expenses.

Net expenses from reinsurance contracts:

Net expenses from reinsurance contracts comprise reinsurance expenses less amounts recovered from reinsurers. The
Company recognises rei nsurance expenses as it receives coverage or other services under groups of reinsurance contracts.
For contracts measured under the PAA, the Company recognises reinsurance expenses based on the passage of time over
the coverage period of agroup of contracts except for longer term policies under engineering and liability groups for which
amortisation is done based on the expected timing of incurred insurance service expenses.

Income and expenses from reinsurance contracts are presented separately from income and expenses from insurance
contracts. Income and expenses from reinsurance contracts, other than insurance finance income or expenses, are presented
on anet basis as 'net expenses from reinsurance contracts' in the insurance service result.

Ceding commissions that are not contingent on claims of the underlying contracts issued reduce ceding premiums and are
accounted for as part of reinsurance expenses. Ceding commissionsthat are contingent on claims of the underlying contracts
issued reduce incurred claims recovery.

Insurance finance income and expenses:

Insurance finance income and expenses comprise changes in the carrying amounts of groups of insurance and rei nsurance
contracts arising from the effects of the time value of money, financial risk, and changes therein.

The Company includes all insurance finance income or expenses for the year in profit or loss.
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3.

3.3

Material accounting policies (continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

3.3.1 Changesto classification, recognition and measur ement

The measurement principles of the PAA differ from the ‘earned premium approach’ used by the Company under IFRS 4
in the following key areas:

Deferral of acquisition costs — Under IFRS 17, insurance acquisition cash flows are costs directly attributable to
selling or underwriting a portfolio of insurance contracts. The Company has elected to capitalise and amortise these
costs over the coverage period based on the passage of time for all groups of contracts except for longer term policies
under engineering and liability groups for which amortisation is done based on the expected timing of incurred
insurance service expenses.

Discount rate— Under IFRS 17, the liability for incurred claimsis discounted at a rate that reflects the characteristics
of the liabilities and the duration of each portfolio. The Company has established discount yield curves using risk-free
rates adjusted to reflect the appropriate illiquidity characteristics of the applicable insurance contracts. Under IFRS 4,
claimsliabilitieswere discounted using arate that reflected the estimated market yield of the underlying assets backing
these claimsliabilities at the reporting date. The changesin discounting methodology did not have a significant impact
on transition. Measurement of the liability for remaining coverage includes an adjustment for the time val ue of money
and the effect of financial risk where the premium due date and the related period of services are more than 12 months

apart.

Risk Adjustment — Under IFRS 17, the liability for incurred claims includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-
financial risk (“risk adjustment”) which replaces the risk margin under IFRS 4. The IFRS 4 risk margin reflected the
inherent uncertainty in the net discounted claim liabilities estimates, whereas the IFRS 17 risk adjustment is the
compensation required for bearing the uncertainty that arises from non-financial risk. Similar to the risk margin, the
risk adjustment includes the benefit of diversification, therefore the two methodologies are fairly aligned. Asaresult,
the changes in methodology did not have a significant impact on transition.

Onerous contracts — IFRS 17 requires the identification of groups of onerous contracts at a more granular level than
the liability adequacy test performed under IFRS 4. For onerous contracts, the loss component based on projected
profitability is recognized immediately in Net income, resulting in earlier recognition compared to IFRS 4. Onerous
contracts did not have a significant impact on transition to IFRS 17.

3.3.2Changesto presentation and disclosure

Statement of financial position
Presentation is driven by portfolios which are composed of groups of contracts covering similar risks and which are
managed together. Portfolios of insurance and reinsurance contracts are presented separately between:

Portfolios of insurance contracts issued that are assets;
Portfolios of insurance contracts issued that are liabilities;
Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are assets; and
Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.3 Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

3.3.2 Changesto presentation and disclosur e (continued)

Lineitemsunder IFRS 17 Lineitemsunder IFRS 4, now combined under onelineitem under IFRS 17

nsurance contract liabilities Unearned premium and Premium deficiency reserve

Premium receivables

Deferred acquisition costs

Policyholders’ claims payable

Nam, Manafeth, | A fee within prepaid expenses and other assets
Survey fee, actuarial fee and Elm fee payable within accrued expenses and other
ligbilities

Outstanding claims

Claimsincurred but not reported

Due to agents, brokers and third-party administrator

Surplus distribution payable

Reinsurance contract assets Reinsurer’s share of unearned premiums

Minimum deposit premium (XOL) within prepaid expenses and other assets
Unearned reinsurance commission

Reinsurance premium payable

Payable to reinsurers within due to reinsurers, agents, brokers and third-party
administrator

Reinsurer’s share of outstanding claims

Reinsurer’s share of claims incurred but not reported

XOL reinstatement payable, within accrued expenses and other liabilities

Due from reinsurers and VAT on reinsurance commission

Statements of income

Thelineitem descriptions in the statement of income have been changed significantly compared to presentation in the latest
annual financial statements.

Insurance revenue under |FRS 17 includes gross written premium, gross movement in unearned premiums and estimates
for expected premium receipts.

Insurance service expense under IFRS 17 includes gross claims paid, changes in outstanding claims, changes in incurred
but not reported claims, changesin loss component, policy acquisition costs, attributable expenses and the impact of release
in the risk adjustment. The changes in premium efficiency reserve is eliminated and instead changes in loss component is
taken.

Net income / (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held under IFRS 17 includes reinsurance premium ceded, changes in
reinsurer’s share of unearned premiums, reinsurance commission earned, reinsurance share of paid claims, reinsurance
share of outstanding claims, reinsurance share of changesin claimsincurred but not reported, change in reinsurance accrual
reserve, expected credit losses on reinsurance receivables and the impact of loss adjustment the risk adjustment for non-
financial risk.

Insurance service results are presented without the impact of discount unwinding and changes in discount rates which are
shown separately under net insurance financial result.

IFRS 17 resulted in presentation changes to IFRS 4’s underwriting expenses, claims handling expenses, policy acquisition
costs and general and administrative expenses since such expenses are classified either as ‘Incurred claims and other directly
attributable expenses’ within insurance service expense or as other operating expenses when they are not directly
attributable to insurance contracts. Asaresult, a portion of expenses classified as general and administrative expenses under
IFRS 4 are now presented as other operating expenses under IFRS 17.

The following previoudly reported line items are no longer disclosed: gross premiums written, net earned premiums, net
claimsincurred, and underwriting expenses.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.4 Financial assetsand liabilities
i Initial recognition of financial assets

At initial recognition, the Company measures financial assets at itsfair value plus, in the case of afinancial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. Transaction
cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Immediately after initial
recognition, an expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and
investments measured at FVOCI.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on initial recognition, the entity
recognises the difference as follows:

a When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (that is, a
Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the difference is
recognised asagain or loss.

b. In al other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is
determined individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument, deferred until the instrument’s fair
value can be determined using market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.

Amortised cost and effectiveinterest rate

The amortised cost of afinancial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus
the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the effective profit method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.

The effective interest rate isthe rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of afinancial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before
any impairment allowance) or to the amortised cost of afinancial liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit
losses and includes transaction costs, contributions or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are integral to the
effective profit rate, such as origination fees.

Commission income is recognised using the effective profit rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit impaired, profit income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net carrying value of the financia
asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, commission income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

The Company classifiesits financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Held at amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are described bel ow:

Debt instruments

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

) the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets; and
(i) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.4. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Business model:

The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether the
Company’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash
flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these isapplicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading
purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL.

Factors considered by the Company in determining the business model for a group of assetsinclude past experience on how
the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to key management
personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated. For example, the liquidity portfolio of
assets, which is held by the Company as part of liquidity management and is generally classified within the hold to collect
and sell business model. Securities held for trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are
part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking. These securities are classified in the ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL.

Solely payments of principal and profit:

Where the business model isto hold assetsto collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell, the
Company assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and profit. In
making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with the financing
agreement i.e. profit includes only consideration for the time value of resources, credit risk, other basic lending risksand a
profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at
FVTPL.

The Company exercises judgment in determining whether the contractual terms of financial assetsit originates or acquires
giverise on specific datesto cash flows that are solely payments of principal and profit income on the principal outstanding
and so may qualify for amortised cost measurement. In making the assessment the Company considersall contractual terms,
including any prepayment terms or provisionsto extend the maturity of the assets, terms that change the amount and timing
of cash flows and whether the contractual terms contain leverage. Based on these factors, the Company classifies its debt
instruments into one of the following three measurement categories:

Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and profit, and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets is
adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognised. Profit income from these financial assets is included in
‘Commission income’ using the effective profit method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”):

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and profit, and that are not designated at FVTPL, are designated as FVOCI.
Movementsin the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, special
commission income and foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised cost which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss. Profit income from these financial assets is included in ‘Commission income’ using the
effective profit method. Currently no debt instrument is classified as FVOCI.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)

3.4 Financial assetsand liabilities (continued)

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Assetsthat do not meet the criteriafor amortised cost or FV OCI are measured at FV TPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL presented in profit or loss in the year in which it arises. Currently investment in
mutual funds and Sukuk which failed SPPI assessment are classified as FVTPL.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the change. Such changes are not expected
to be frequent and no such instances have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Equity instruments:

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that
do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets. Examples of
equity instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Company classifies all equity investments at FVTPL, except where the Company’s management has elected, at initial
recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at FVOCI. The Company’s policy is to designate equity
investments as FVOCI when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate investment returns. When this
election is used, transaction costs are made part of the cost at initial recognition and subsequent fair value gains and losses
(unrealized) are recognized in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. The Company has
designated itsinvestment in Ngjm for Insurance Services Company, a Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company, as FVOCI.

Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognized in the statement of income as
‘Dividend income’ when the Company’s right to receive payments is established. Currently all equity Securities are
designated as FVOCI.

Any gain or loss on the disposal of equity classified as FVOCI will be non- recycling i.e. on disposal, fair value movement
residing in OCI will be moved directly from OCI to retained earnings.

iii. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with its financial assets. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. The measurement of ECL
reflects:

- An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by eval uating a range of possible outcomes;

- Thetime vaue of money; and

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Company applies the three-stage model for impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI,
based on changesin credit quality since initial recognition.

Stage 1 (“Performing”) includes financial assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these financial assets, 12-month expected credit losses (“ECL”) are
recognised and financial incomeis calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset (that is, without deduction for credit
allowance). A 12-month ECL is the ECL that results from default events that are possible within 12-months after the
reporting date. It is not the expected cash shortfalls over the 12-month period but the entire credit loss on an asset, weighted
by the probability that the loss will occur in the next 12-months.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.4 Financial assetsand liabilities (continued)
iii. Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Stage 2 (“Under-performing”) includes financial assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, but do not have objective evidence of impairment. A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
receivable is more than 30 days past due. For these financial assets, lifetime ECL are recognised, but financial income is
still calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset. Lifetime ECL is the ECL that results from all possible default
events over the maximum contractual period during which the Company is exposed to credit risk. ECL is the weighted
average credit losses, with the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

Stage 3 (“Non-performing”) includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. A
default on afinancial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall
due. For these financia assets, lifetime ECL are recognised and financia income is calculated on the net carrying amount
(that is, net of credit allowance).

The Company, when determining whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly, considers
reasonable and supportable information available (e.g. days past due, customer credit scoring etc.), in order to compare the
risk of a default occurring at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring at initial recognition of the financial
asset.

Financial assets are written-off only when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Where financia assets are written-off, the Company continues to engage enforcement activities to attempt to recover the
receivable due. Recoveries made, after write-off, are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment |osses on financial assets are presented separately on the statement of income.
iv. Derecognition of financial assets

Financia assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i) the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially al the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Company has not retained control.

The Company enters into transactions where it retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes
acontractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in statement of income.

V. Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

All financia liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective profit method.

Vi Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires). Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in respective carrying amountsis recognised in the statement of income.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.4 Financial assetsand liabilities (continued)
34.1 Changesto classification and measurement

To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be assessed based on a
combination of the Company’s business model for managing the assets and the instruments’ contractua cash flow
characteristics.

The lAS 39 measurement categories for financial assets (fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), available for sale (AFS),
held-to-maturity (HTM) and loans and receivables (L& R) at amortised cost) have been replaced by:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, including equity instruments and derivatives,

- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, with gains or losses recycled to profit or loss on
derecognition;

- Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or
loss on derecognition (not used by the Company); and

- Debt instruments at amortised cost.

IFRS 9 largely retains the requirementsin | AS 39 for the classification and measurement of financia liabilities. However,

under IAS 39 dl fair value changes of financial liabilities designated asat FVV TPL are recognised in the statement of income,

whereas under IFRS 9 these fair value changes will generally be presented as follows:

- The amount of the change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability will be
presented in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl);

- Theremaining amount of the changein the fair value is presented in the statement of income.

The Company has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively and restated comparative information for 2022 for financial instruments
in the scope of IFRS 9. Differences arising from the adoption of IFRS 9 were recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January
2022. There is no impact expected on financial liabilities as aresult of transition to IFRS 9.

3.4.2 Changestotheimpairment calculation

Under IFRS 9, the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of
the asset (the lifetime expected credit 10ss); unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss.

Lifetime expected credit losses represent ECL that would result from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial asset whereas 12 month expected credit 1osses are those life expected credit losses expected to occur within
12 months of statement of financial position date. Both lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs will be calculated on an
individua basis depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

ECL is computed based on the parameters namely Probability of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) and Exposure at
Default (EAD) values. ECL is discounted to present value.

Probability of Default (‘PD”): The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon.
Loss Given Default (‘LGD”): Loss given default inputs are determined by class of financial instrument based on historical
experience of loss and recovery rates for similar financial instruments and other relevant industry data.

Exposure at Default (‘EAD’): The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date.

Forward looking estimate: While estimating the ECL, the Company will review macro-economic devel opments occurring
in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company will analyze the relationship between key
economic trends with the estimate of PD.

IFRS 9 impairment applies to financial instruments that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Equity instruments measured at FVOCI are also excluded from the purview of impairment.

Financial assets that are subject to impairment consist of investment portfolio and cash and cash equivalents.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.5 Commission, dividend income and other income

Commission income on short-term deposits and long-term deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest rate method and are disclosed under ‘Investment and commission income’ in statement of income.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive a dividend is established and is included under realised gain on
FVTPL investmentsin the statement of income. Income from Umrah product medical, general and accident insurance fund,
is recognised as other income on the basis of quarterly financial statements released by their Fund Manager i.e. The
Company for Cooperative I nsurance.

3.6 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in
the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

3.7  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalentsinclude cash in hand and with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments, if any, with
less than three months maturity from the date of acquisition.

3.8 Termdeposits

Short-term deposits are placed with local banks and financial institutions with an original maturity of more than three
months but |ess than or equal to twelve months from the date of placement.

Long-term deposit represents deposit with maturity of more than one year from the date of placement and is placed with a
financial ingtitution carrying commission income.

3.9 Operating segments

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing products or services (an operating
segment), which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from those of other segments. For management purposes,
the Company is organized into business units based on their products and services and has the following major reportable
segments:

e Medical provides compensation to policyholders for expenses incurred in treatment of adisease, illness or injury.
e Motor provides coverage against losses and liability related to motor vehicles.
e  Other includes property, marine, engineering, accident and liability.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for alocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer that makes strategic decisions.

No inter-segment transactions occurred during the period. If any transaction were to occur, transfer prices between business
segments are set on an arm's length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. Segment revenue, expense
and results will then include those transfers between business segments which will then be eliminated at the level of the
financial statements of the Company.

3.10 Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of income during the financial year in which they are incurred.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. The carrying
values of these assets are reviewed for impairment when event or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal's are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in the
statement of income.

3.11 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets are not capitalized, and the related expenditure is reflected in the statement of income in the period in
which the expenditureisincurred. Intangible assetswith finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Further, capital work in progress
is not amortized.

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with afinite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of income in the expense
category that is consistent with the function of the intangible assets. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognized in the statement of income when the asset is derecognized. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually at the cash generating unit (“CGU”) level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired.

Any impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of income.

The amortization method, useful life and residual value are reviewed at each reporting date and the changes are adjusted, if
appropriate.

312 Leases

Lease liabilities

Theleaseliability isinitially measured at the net present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date. Thelease payments are discounted using the interest rateimplicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that

the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the RoU asset
inasimilar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changesin financing conditions since third party financing was received;

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
individual lessee, which does not have recent third-party financing, and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, for example term, country, currency and security.

Lease liabilities include the net present val ue of the following lease payments:

o fixed lease payments, less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payabl e by the lessee under residua value guarantees;

. the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee isreasonably certain to exercise the options; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the
lease.
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3. Material accounting policies (continued)
3.12  Leases(continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are aso included in the measurement of the
liability.

Theleaseliability is presented as a separate linein the statement of financial position.

Theleaseliahility is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest rate method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related RoU asset) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the
lease liability is re-measured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate;

. the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate (unlessthe lease payments change is due

. alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which casethe lease
liability isre-measured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

Right-of-use assets (RoU)

The RoU assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liahility, lease payments made at or before the
commencement day and any initia direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove aleased asset, restore the site on whichit is
located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is
recognised and measured under IAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets.

3.12 Provisonsand other liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from past events, and the costs
to settle the obligation are both probable and may be measured reliably. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses. Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the
supplier or not.

3.13 Employees’ benefit obligations

The Company operates a single post-employment benefit scheme of defined benefit plan driven by the labor laws and
workman laws of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabiawhich isbased on most recent salary and number of service years.

The post-employment benefits plan is hot funded. Accordingly, valuations of the obligations under the plan are carried out
by an independent actuary based on the projected unit credit method. The costs relating to such plans primarily consist of
the present value of the benefits attributed on an equal basis to each year of service and the interest on this obligation in
respect of employees’ servicein previousyears.

Current and past service costs related to post-employment benefits are recognised immediately in the statement of income
and while unwinding of the liability at discount rates used are recorded in the statement of income. Any changes in net
liability due to actuarial valuations and changes in assumptions are taken as re-measurement in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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3. M aterial accounting policies (continued)
3.13 Employees’ benefit obligations (continued)

Re-measurement gains and |osses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
directly in the statement of comprehensive income and transferred to retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity
in the year in which they occur.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in statement of income as past service costs. End of service payments are based on employees’
final salaries and allowances and their cumulative years of service, as stated in the labor law of Saudi Arabia.

3.14 Zakat

The Company is subject to zakat in accordance with the regulations of the Zakat, Tax, and Customs Authority (“ZATCA”).
Zakat iscomputed on the Saudi shareholders’ share of equity or net profit using the basis defined under the Zakat regulations.
Additional amounts payable, if any, at the finalization of final assessments are accounted for when such amounts are
determined. Zakat expense is charged to the statement of income. Zakat is not accounted for as income tax and as such no
deferred tax is calculated relating to zakat.

3.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, land — are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units).

3.16 Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company’s by-laws, the Company shall allocate 20% of its net income from shareholders operations
each year to the statutory reserve until it has built up a reserve equal to the share capital. The reserve is not available for
distribution.

3.17 Fair values

Thefair value of financial assetsis based on quoted prices for marketable securities or estimated fair values. The fair value
of commission-bearing itemsis estimated based on discounted cash flow using commission for itemswith similar terms and
risk characteristics.

For financial assets where there is no active market, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of a similar
financial assets or where the fair values cannot be derived from active market, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques. The inputs of this models are taken from observable market where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

4.  Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized
prospectively.
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4.  Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)

In preparing these financial statements, the significant judgments made by management in applying the Company’s
accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty including the risk management policies were the same as
those that applied to the annual financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022 except for points (i) to
(vii) below, which changed upon adoption of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9.

Following are the accounting judgments and estimates that are critical in preparation of these financial statements:
i. Estimates of future cash flows to fulfil insurance contracts

In estimating future cash flows, the Company incorporates, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date. This information includes both internal and external
historical data about claims and other experiences, updated to reflect current expectations of future events. The estimates of
future cash flows reflect the Company's view of current conditions at the reporting date, as long as the estimates of any
relevant market variables are consistent with observable market prices.

The estimates of these future cash flows are based on probability-weighted expected future cash flows. The Company
estimates which cash flows are expected and the probability that they will occur as at the measurement date. In making these
expectations, the Company uses information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future conditions. The
Company’s estimate of future cash flows is the mean of a range of scenarios that reflect the full range of possible outcomes.
Each scenario specifies the amount, timing and probability of cash flows. The probability-weighted average of the future
cash flowsis calculated using a deterministic scenario representing the probability-weighted mean of arange of scenarios.

When estimating future cash flows, the Company takes into account current expectations of future events that might affect
those cash flows. However, expectations of future changesin legisation that would change or discharge a present obligation
or create new obligations under existing contracts are not taken into account until the change in legidation is substantivel y
enacted. Cash flows within the boundary of a contract relate directly to the fulfilment of the contract, including those for
which the Company has discretion over the amount or timing. These include payments to (or on behalf of) policyholders,
insurance acquisition cash flows and other costs that are incurred in fulfilling contracts.

Where estimates of expenses-related cash flows are determined at the portfolio level or higher, they are allocated to groups
of contracts on a systematic basis. The Company has determined that this method results in a systematic and rational
alocation. Similar methods are consistently applied to alocate expenses of a similar nature. Expenses of an administrative
policy maintenance nature are allocated to groups of contracts based on the number of contractsin force within groups. The
Company performs regular expense studies to determine the extent to which fixed and variable overheads are directly
attributable to fulfil the insurance contracts.

Insurance acquisition cash flows arise from the activities of selling, underwriting and starting a group of contracts that are
directly attributable to the portfolio of contracts to which the group belongs. Other costs that are incurred in fulfilling the
contracts include claims handling, maintenance and administration costs, and recurring commissions payable on instal ment
premiums receivable within the contract boundary. Insurance acquisition cash flows and other costs that are incurred in
fulfilling contracts comprise both direct costs and an alocation of fixed and variable overheads. Cash flows are attributed
to acquisition activities, other fulfilment activities and other activities at local entity level using activity-based costing
techniques. Cash flows attributable to acquisition and other fulfilment activities are allocated to groups of contracts using
methods that are systematic and rational and are consistently applied to al coststhat have similar characteristics. Other costs
are recognised in profit or loss as they are incurred.
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4.  Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)
ii. Discounting methodology

Discount rates are primarily used to adjust the estimates of future cash flows to reflect the time value of money and other
financial risksto accrete interest on the liability for incurred claims.

The bottom-up approach was used to derive the discount rate. Under this approach, the USD based risk free discount rates
were used as a starting point for preparing the yield curve given that SAR is pegged with USD. The Company then further
added a KSA country risk premium to make the yield curve appropriate for application. The Company has used the USD
volatility adjustment for Solvency |1 as a proxy for illiquidity premium. The Company is currently discounting liability for
incurred claims for al groups of insurance contracts.

The yield curves that were used to discount the estimates of future cash flows that do not vary based on the returns of the
underlying items are as follows:

2023
I nsurance contr acts issued
and reinsurance contracts

held Currency 1 year 2years 3years 4years Syears
M edical SAR 6.23% 5.53% 5.19% 5.04% 4.97%
M otor SAR 6.23% 5.53% 5.19% 5.04% 4.97%
Others SAR 6.23% 5.53% 5.19% 5.04% 4.97%
2022

I nsurance contr acts issued
and reinsurance contracts

held Currency 1 year 2years 3years 4 years Syears
M edical SAR 6.59% 6.18% 5.78% 5.57% 5.47%
M otor SAR 6.59% 6.18% 5.78% 5.57% 5.47%
Others SAR 6.59% 6.18% 5.78% 5.57% 5.47%

iii. Risk adjustment for non-financial risks

The Company shall adjust the estimate of the present value of the future cashflowsto reflect the compensation that the entity
requires for bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cashflows that arises from non-financial risk. So,
the purpose of the risk adjustment for non-financial risk is to measure the effect of uncertainty in the cashflows that arise
from insurance contracts, other than uncertainty arising from financia risk. The risks covered by the risk adjustment for
non-financia risk are insurance risk and other non-financial risks such as lapse risk and expense risk.

The Company adopted the PAA simplification for the calculation of liability for remaining coverage. Therefore, risk
adjustment for liability for remaining coverage will only be estimated in case a group of contractsis recognized as onerous.

Applying a confidence level technique, the Company estimates the probability distribution of the expected present value of
the future cash flows from insurance contracts at each reporting date and calculates the risk adjustment for non-financial
risk as the excess of the value at risk at the 75th percentile (the target confidence level) over the expected present value of
the future cash flows.

iv. Onerosity determination

Under the PAA, the Company shall assume no contracts in the portfolio are onerous at initial recognition unless “facts and
circumstances” indicate otherwise. The Company performs the assessment of onerous contracts on an annual and
underwriting year basis, in conjunction with updated information on product profitability. Furthermore, the assessment shall
be repeated if “facts and circumstances” indicate that there are significant changes in product pricing, product design, plans
and forecasts. Thislevel of granularity determines sets of contracts. The Company uses significant judgement to determine
at what level of granularity the Company has reasonable and supportable information that is sufficient to conclude that all
contracts within aset are sufficiently homogeneous and will be alocated to the same group without performing an individual
contract assessment.
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4.  Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)

iv. Onerosity determination (continued)

The Company has established a process for the underwriting team to capture onerous, potentially onerous and profitable
contracts by assessing the profitability of the different portfolios at the start of the underwriting year. The profitability of
each portfolio shall be assessed separately. Refer Note 3.3.1 for further detailsin this regard.

v. Fair value of financial instruments

Thefair value of financial instrumentsthat are not traded in an active market is determined using val uation techniques. The
Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and to make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Refer to Note 26 for details relating to fair valuation techniques and
a sensitivity analysisin relation to the significant assumptions.

vi. Estimates for expected premium receipts

The Company has developed a methodology for expected premium receipts based on provision matrix approach. Such
balances have been reclassified to insurance contract liabilities in line with the requirements of IFRS 17. To measure the
estimates, such balances have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics for respective policyholder base
portfolio and the days past due. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors, affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Company has identified the
Gross domestic product of the country in which it operates to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

vii.  Sensitivities on major assumptions considered while applying IFRS 17

The sensitivity analysis is done to evaluate the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit / loss before tax and equity for
reasonably possible movementsin key assumptions with al other assumptions in Note 3 held constant. The correlation of
assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impacts, but to

demonstrate the impact due to changes in each assumption, assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis. It should
be noted that movements in these assumptions are nonlinear.

The sensitivity analysis performed during the year and has been presented under Note 27.

vii. Right of use assets and lease liabilities

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that
the Company would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset
inasimilar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

5. Impact of adoption of new accounting standards

The Company has adopted IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 from 1 January 2023 and the impact of the adoption are disclosed in note
5.1 and 5.2 respectively with the cumulative impactsin note 5.3.

51 IFRS 17

On trangition to IFRS 17, the Company has applied the full retrospective approach to all insurance contracts issued and
reinsurance contracts held. Therefore, on transition date, 1 January 2022, the Company:

- hasidentified, recognised and measured each group of insurance and reinsurance contracts as if IFRS 17 had always
applied;

- derecognised any existing balances that would not exist had IFRS 17 always applied; and

- recognised any resulting net difference in equity
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5. Impact of adoption of new accounting standar ds (continued)
51 IFRS 17 (continued)
The impact of transition to IFRS 17 on total equity is, asfollows:

1January 2023 1 January 2022

(Reduction) / increase in the Company’s total equity

Change in measurement of reinsurance contract assets (7,597) 27,991
Change in measurement of insurance contract liabilities (3,378) (9,346)
Impact of adoption of IFRS 17 on total equity (10,975) 18,645

Increase/ (reduction) in the Company’s total assets impacting total equity

Risk adjustment (11,872) 21,715
Discounting (1,031) (890)
L oss component recovery 5,306 7,166
Impact of adoption of IFRS 17 on total assets impacting total equity (7,597) 27,991

(Increase) / reduction in the Company’s total liabilities impacting total

equity
L oss component on onerous contracts (12,485) (15,782)
Risk adjustment 12,272 (31,216)
Discounting 5,135 1,268
Impairment of premiums receivables (8,300) 36,384
Impact of adoption of IFRS 17 on total liabilities impacting total equity (3,378) (9,346)

Theimpact on the net lossfor the year ended 31 December 2022 attributable to the shareholders, arising from risk adjustment,
discounting, loss component adjustment and expected premium receipts, in line with the requirements of IFRS 17, are as
follows:

For theyear ended
31 December 2022

Net loss after zakat and income tax as previoudy reported (42,861)
Impact on the Company’s net loss

L oss component (7,179)
Risk adjustment, net 400
Discounting, net 4,104
Impairment of premium receivables (8,300)
Classification of financial assets (1,646)
Impact of adoption of IFRS 17 (12,621)
Adjusted net loss after zakat and income tax (55,482)
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5. Impact of adoption of new accounting standar ds (continued)
52 IFRS9

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied using afull retrospective approach.
The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of initial
application:

- the determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held;

- the designation and revocation of previous designated financial assets as measured at FVTPL. This category includes
financial assets that were previously designated as held for trading;

- the sukuks having a fixed term maturities were reclassified into amortised cost which were previously classified at
held to maturity; and

- the designation of certain investmentsin equity instruments not held for trading as FV OCI.

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under I1AS 39 and the balances reported under IFRS 9 as of the date of
application i.e. 1 January 2023 and 2022 is, as follows:

31 December 2022 Re- Re-measurement 1 January 2023
IAS 39 classification IFRS9
Financial assets Category Amount ECL Others Category Amount
Held at
Cash and cash Loans & 83,980 - @8 - amortised 83,964
equivalents receivables cost
Available Held at
KSA Sukuks for sde 108,414 20,986 - (987) amortised 128,413
(AFS) cost
Available Held at
GACA Sukuks for sale 100,000 803 - - amortised 100,803
(AFS) cost
Available-for-sale Available
investment for sale 236 - - 23 FVTPL 236
(Refer Note 6.3) (AFS)
Available-for-sale Available
investment for sale 18,956 - - (362) FVTPL 18,956
(Refer Note 6.3) (AFS)
Available-for-sale Available
investment for sale 4,698 - - 440 FVTPL 4,698
(Refer Note 6.3) (AFS)
Available-for-sale Available
investment for sale 1,923 - - 37,780 FVOCI 39,703
(Refer Note 6.3) (AFS)
. Loans & Held "."t
Statutory deposit . 60,000 - (12) - amortised 59,989
receivables
cost
. Held at
Accrued income on Loaps & 6,712 ) (1) - amortised 6,711
statutory deposit receivables cost
Loans & Not
Other assets receivables 80,604 (1,710) - " applicable 78,894
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5. Impact of adoption of new accounting standar ds (continued)

5.2  IFRS9 (continued)

31 December 2021 Re- Re-measurement 1 January 2022
IAS 39 classification IFRS9
Financial assets Category Amount ECL Others Category Amount
Held at
Cash and cash Loans & 87,769 : (16) - amortised 87,753
equivaents receivables cost
Available Held at
KSA Sukuks for sdle 123,390 6,048 - (662)  amortised 128,776
(AFS) cost
Available Held at
GACA Sukuks for sdle 100,000 803 - - amortised 100,803
(AFS) cost
Available-for-sae Available
investment for sdle 230 - - 18 FVTPL 230
(Refer Note 5.3) (AFS)
Available-for-sae Available
investment for sale 20,220 - - 902 FVTPL 20,220
(Refer Note 5.3) (AFS)
Available-for-sae Available
investment for sale 4,763 - - 505 FVTPL 4,763
(Refer Note 5.3) (AFS)
Available-for-sale Available
investment for sdle 1,923 - - 35,109 FVOCI 37,032
(Refer Note 5.3) (AFS)
. Loans & Held. a
Statutory deposit . 60,000 - (11 - amortised 59,989
receivables
cost
. Held at
Accruedincomeon - Loans& 5,396 - ) - amortised 5,395
statutory deposit receivables cost
Loans & Not
Other assets receivables 60,335 (1,747) - " applicable 58,588

Most of the financial assets that were classified as loan and receivables and held to maturity under IAS 39 continues to be
measured at amortised costs under IFRS 9 since these form part of business model hold to collect contractual cash flows
which are SPPI. Financia assets held for trading continue to be measured at fair value through profit or loss and as such
there was no impact on transition.

The impact on opening fair value reserve and opening accumulated losses, as at 1 January 2023 and 2022, is as follows:

1 January 1 January
2023 2022
Restated Restated
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Increase / (reduction) in the Company’s total equity
Classification of financial assets (1,646) 763
Impairment of financial assets - (28)
Reclassification of financial assets 14,975 5,104
Fair valuation of Najm shares (Refer Note 8.3) 2,538 35,242
Impact of adoption of | FRS 9 befor e zakat and income tax 15,867 41,081

Furthermore, the classification of financial liabilities has changed from ‘Other financial liabilities at amortised cost’ as per
TAS 39 to ‘amortised cost’ as per IFRS 9, with no corresponding change in carrying value of such financial liabilities.
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6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

31 December 2022

31 December 2023 (Restated)

Bank balances 82,024 83,980
Short term deposits 40,271 -
Less: Expected credit loss (16) (16)
122,279 83,964

Cash at banksis placed with counterparties with sound credit ratings. As at 31 December 2023, deposits were placed with
the local bank with original maturity of less than three months from the date of placement and earned commission income
ranges from 5.75% to 6.15%.

The gross carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk on
these financial assets which are categorised under investment grade and Stage 1. Investment grade includes those financial
assets having credit exposure equivalent to Standard and Poor's rating of AAA to BBB. The Company’s exposuresto credit
risk are not collateralized.

Movement in allowance for expected credit losses on cash and cash equivalentsis as follows:

31 December 31 December 2022

2023 (Restated)
Balance at beginning of the year 16 16
ECL alowance recognised in statement of income during the year - -
Balance at end of the year 16 16

7. Termdeposits
31 December 31 December 2022

2023 (Restated)
Term deposits 100,000 -
Accrued income 1,041 -
Balance at end of the year 101,041 -

The term deposits represent deposits held with thelocal commercial banks and earn commission at market rates. These term
deposits are denominated in Saudi Arabian Riyals and have an original maturity of more than three-months and less than
twelve-months. As of 31 December 2023, the deposit yield commission rate of 6% (31 December 2022: Nil).

The gross carrying amount of term deposits represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk on these financial
assets which are categorised under investment grade and Stage 1. Investment grade includes those financial assets having
credit exposure equivalent to Standard and Poor's rating of AAA to BBB. The Company’s exposures to credit risk are not
collateralized.
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8. Investments

(@) Investmentsare classified as follows:

31 December 31 December 2022

2023 (Restated)

Note
Measured at fair value through profit or loss 8.1 246 23,890
Financial assets at amortised cost 8.2 130,113 229,216
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 8.3 43,463 39,703
173,822 292,809

8.1 Measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

FVTPL includes investments managed by a fund manager under the discretionary portfolio of investments where all such
investments are carried at fair value as provided by the Fund managers. The fund manager keep such investmentsin various
equity and real estate funds, al of which are held for trading.

Movement in investment in discretionary portfolio is as follows:

31 December 31 December 2022

2023 (Restated)
Balance at beginning of the year 23,890 25,213
Disposal during the year (24,385) -
Gain on disposal of investment 727 -
Changesin fair value of investments 14 (1,323
Balance at end of the year 246 23,890

8.2 Financial assetsat amortised cost
31 December 31 December 2022

2023 (Restated)
Sukuk 130,113 229,216
Expected credit loss - -
Net amount — total 130,113 229,216

The gross carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost represents the Company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk on these financial assets which are categorised under investment grade and Stage 1. Investment grade includes
those financial assets having credit exposure equivalent to Standard and Poor's rating of AAA to BBB, whereas non-
investment grade represents un-rated exposures. The Company’s exposures to credit risk are not collateralized.
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8. I nvestments (continued)
8.3 Financial assetsat fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)

31 December 31 December 2022

2023 (Restated)
Balance at beginning of the year 39,703 37,032
Changesin fair value of investments 3,760 2,671
Balance at end of the year 43,463 39,703

The above represents the Company’s 3.45% (31 December 2022: 3.45%) holding in Najm for Insurance Services Company,
aSaudi Closed Joint Stock Company. These shares are un-quoted and are carried at fair value. The Company has determined
the fair value of its investment in Ngjm, which was previoudly carried at initial cost of Saudi Riyals 1.9 million until 31
December 2022, to be SAR 39.7 million at as 31 December 2022 and SAR 43.5 million as at 31 December 2023.
Accordingly, the required adjustments to bring the carrying value of such investment to its fair value, in accordance with
the requirements of IFRS 9, have been recorded in the opening equity as of 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022. The
valuation is based on discounted cash flows which are based on approved projections. Key assumptions used in Ngjm
valuation include discount rate of 16.5%, terminal growth rate in the range of 1%-2% etc.

9. Prepaid expenses and other assets
31 December 31 December
2023 2022 (Restated)
Co-insurance income receivable 13,833 13,878
Margin deposit 22,396 22,396
VAT receivables 5,701 5,701
Prepayments 5,283 2,690
Advances to staff 494 649
Accrued commission - 1,020
Others 10,352 2,578
58,059 48,912
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10. Insurance and reinsur ance contr acts

101 Composition of the statement of financial position

An analysis of the amounts presented on the statement of financial position for insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts has been included in the table below:

31 December 2023

I nsurance contracts
Insurance contract assets
Insurance contract liabilities

Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets
Reinsurance contract liabilities

31 December 2022 — (Restated)
I nsurance contracts

Insurance contract assets
Insurance contract liabilities

Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets
Reinsurance contract liabilities

Motor-
Medical Comprehensive Motor-TPL Energy Engineering Others Total
- - - - - 629 629
(47,034) (10,822) (206,564) (23,077) (9,017) - (286,514)
(47,034) (10,822) (206,564) (13,077) (9,017) 629 (285,885)
- - - 5,959 - 8,386 14,345
(496) (10,286) (5,340) - (25,932) - (42,054)
(496) (10,286) (5,340) 5,959 (25,932) 8,386 (27,709)
Motor-
M edical Comprehensive Motor-TPL Energy Engineering Others Total
(68,208) (14,697) (146,125) (19,079) (175,079) (16,627) (439,815)
(68,208) (14,697) (146,125) (19,079) (175,079) (16,627) (439,815)
22,061 15,502 23,709 11,602 55,005 19,507 147,386
22,061 15,502 23,709 11,602 55,005 19,507 147,386
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10. Insuranceand reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims

10.21 I nsurance contracts (all portfolios)
Asat 31 December 2023
Liability for remaining cover age Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Estimates of Adjustment
Excluding Loss present value of for non-
loss component component FCF financial risk
I nsurance contracts
Insurance contract liabilities —
opening 166,833 50,517 203,520 18,945 439,815
Insurance contract assets — opening - - - - -
Opening balance — net 166,833 50,517 203,520 18,945 439,815
I nsurance revenue (1,061,771) - - - (1,061,771)
I nsur ance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses® - - 538,597 (9,086) 529,511
Reversal of onerous contracts - (46,007) - - (46,007)
Changes that relate to past service - - 28,707 - 28,707
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation 113,111 - - - 113,111
I nsurance service expenses 113,111 (46,007) 567,304 (9,086) 625,322
Finance cost from insurance contracts - - 4,709 - 4,709
Total changesin the statement of (948,660) (46,007) 572,013 (9,086) (431,740)
income
Cashflows
Premiums received 941,489 - - - 941,489
Claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses - - (559,645) Q) (559,645)
Insurance acquisition cashflows paid (104,033) - - - (104,033)
Total cash inflows/ (outflows) 837,456 - (559,645) @ 277,810
I nsurance contracts
Insurance contract liabilities— closing 55,629 4,510 215,888 9,858 285,885
Insurance contract assets — closing - - - - -
Closing balance — net 55,629 4,510 215,888 9,858 285,885

*Thisincludes surplus distribution of SAR 0.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (Also see Note 32).
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10. Insuranceand reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contracts (all portfolios) (continued)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities — opening
Insurance contract assets — opening
Opening balance — net

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses

Reversal of onerous contracts

Changesthat relate to past service
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

Insurance service expenses

Finance income from insurance
contracts

Total changes in the statement of
income

Cashflows

Premiums received
Claims and other incurred insurance
Service expenses

Insurance acquisition cashflows paid
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities— closing
Insurance contract assets— closing
Closing balance — net

As at 31 December 2022 — Restated

Liability for remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Excluding Estimates of Adjustment
loss present value for non-
component  Loss component of FCF financial risk
8,508 41,160 305,522 31,216 386,406
8,508 41,160 305,522 31,216 386,406
(634,333) - - - (634,333)
- - 379,768 (12,271) 367,497
- 9,357 - - 9,357
- - (106,603) - (106,603)
69,420 - - - 69,420
69,420 9,357 273,165 (12,271) 339,671
- - (1,812) - (1,812)
(564,913) 9,357 271,353 (12,271) (296,474)
799,616 - - - 799,616
- - (380,640) - (380,640)
(76,378) - 7,285 - (69,093)
723,238 - (373,355) - 349,883
166,833 50,517 203,520 18,945 439,815
166,833 50,517 203,520 18,945 439,815
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10. Insuranceand reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contracts (M edical)

Asat 31 December 2023

Liability for remaining cover age Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Estimates of Adjustment
Excluding Loss present value of for non-
loss component component FCF financial risk
I nsurance contracts
Insurance contract liabilities — opening - 3,356 66,349 5,681 75,386
Insurance contract assets — opening (7,178) - - - (7,178)
Opening balance - net (7,178) 3,356 66,349 5,681 68,208
Insurancerevenue (102,752) - - - (102,752)
I nsur ance ser vice expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses - - 121,212 (4,918) 116,294
Reversal of losses on onerous contracts - (319 - - (319)
Changes that relate to past service - - (13,328) - (13,328)
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation 13,557 - - - 13,557
I nsur ance ser vice expenses 13,557 (319 107,884 (4,918) 116,204
Finance costs from insurance contracts - - 1,159 - 1,159
Total changesin the statement of (89,195) (319 109,043 (4,918) 14,611
income
Cashflows
Premiums received 108,934 - - - 108,934
Claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses - - (131,505) - (131,505)
Insurance acquisition cashflows paid (13,214) - - - (13,214)
Total cash inflows (outflows) 95,720 - (131,505) - (35,785)
Insurance contracts
Insurance contract liabilities — closing - 3,037 43,887 763 47,687
Insurance contract assets — closing (653) - - - (653)
Closing balance - net (653) 3,037 43,887 763 47,034
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2 Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities —
opening

Insurance contract assets — opening
Opening balance — net

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses

Onerous contracts recognized

Changes that relate to past service
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

I nsurance service expenses

Finance income from insurance
contracts

Total changes in the statement of
income

Cashflows

Premiums received
Claims and other incurred insurance
service

Insurance acquisition cash flows paid
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities— closing
Insurance contract assets— closing
Closing balance — net

Insurance contracts (M edical) (continued)

As at 31 December 2022 - Restated

Liability for remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims Total

Risk
Excluding Estimates of Adjustment
loss Loss  present value of for non-
component component FCF financial risk

800 9,719 60,153 3,725 74,397

800 9,719 60,153 3,725 74,397

(100,436) - - - (100,436)

- - 100,259 1,956 102,215

- (6,362) - - (6,362)

- - 4,674 - 4,674

11,912 - - - 11,912

11,912 (6,362) 104,933 1,956 112,439

- - 26 - 26

(88,524) (6,362) 104,959 1,956 12,029

90,940 - - - 90,940

- - (100,677) - (100,677)

(10,394) (2) 1,914 - (8,481)

80,546 (1) (98,763) - (18,218)

- 3,356 66,349 5,681 75,386

(7,178) - - - (7,178)

(7,178) 3,356 66,349 5,681 68,208
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contr acts (M otor -Compr ehensive)

I nsurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities —
opening

Insurance contract assets — opening
Opening balance — net

Insurancerevenue

I nsur ance ser vice expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses

Reversal of onerous contracts

Changes that relate to past service
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

I nsur ance service expenses

Finance costs from insurance
contracts

Total changesin the statement of
income

Cashflows

Premiums received

Claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses

Insurance acquisition cashflows paid

Total cash inflows (outflows)

I nsurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities — closing
Insurance contract assets— closing
Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2023

Liability for remaining cover age Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Estimates of Adjustment
Excluding Loss present value of for non-
loss component component FCF financial risk
- 17,977 51,678 3,656 73,311
(58,615) - - - (58,615)
(58,615) 17,977 51,678 3,656 14,696
(163,594) - - - (163,594)
- - 139,234 (804) 138,430
- (16,641) - - (16,641)
- - (7,648) - (7,648)
28,243 - - - 28,243
28,243 (16,641) 131,586 (804) 142,384
1,006 - 1,006
(135,351) (16,641) 132,592 (804) (20,204)
207,257 - - - 207,257
- - (164,305) - (164,305)
(26,622) - - - (26,622)
180,635 - (164,305) - 16,330
- 1,336 19,965 2,852 24,153
(13,331) - - - (13,331)
(13,331) 1,336 19,965 2,852 10,822
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contracts (M otor- Comprehensive) (continued)

Asat 31 December 2022 - Restated

Liability for remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Excluding Estimates of Adjustment
loss present value of for non-
component Loss component FCF financial risk
Insurance contracts
Insurance contract liabilities —
opening - 122 41,441 3,207 44,770
Insurance contract assets — opening (8,876) - - - (8,876)
Opening balance — net (8,876) 122 41,441 3,207 35,894
Insurance revenue (127,486) - - - (127,486)
Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses - - 170,163 450 170,613
Onerous contracts recognized - 17,856 - - 17,856
Changes that relate to past service - - 7,907 - 7,907
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation 19,724 - - - 19,724
Insurance service expenses 19,724 17,856 178,070 450 216,100
Finance income from insurance
contracts - - (393) - (393)
Total changes in the statement of
income (107,762) 17,856 177,677 450 88,221
Cashflows
Premiums received 81,349 - - - 81,349
Claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses - - (170,686) - (170,686)
Insurance acquisition cashflows paid (23,326) (2) 3,246 Q) (20,082)
Total cash inflows/ (outflows) 58,023 Q) (167,440) (0] (109,419)
Insurance contracts
Insurance contract liabilities — closing - 17,977 51,678 3,656 73,313
Insurance contract assets — closing (58,615) - - - (58,615)
Closing balance — net (58,615) 17,977 51,678 3,656 14,696
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contracts (M otor-TPL)

I nsurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities —
opening

Insurance contract assets — opening
Opening balance — net

Insurancerevenue

I nsurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses

Reversal of onerous contracts

Changes that relate to past service
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

I nsurance service expenses

Finance costs from insurance
contracts

Total changesin the statement of
income

Cashflows

Premiums received

Claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses

Insurance acquisition cashflows paid

Total cash inflows (outflows)

I nsurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities — closing
Insurance contract assets— closing
Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2023

Liability for remaining cover age Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Estimates of Adjustment
Excluding Loss present value of for non-
loss component component FCF financial risk
92,427 29,184 21,692 2,822 146,125
92,427 29,184 21,692 2,822 146,125
(369,729) - - - (369,729)
- - 272,146 898 273,044
- (29,047) - - (29,047)
- - 62,114 - 62,114
33,155 - - - 33,155
33,155 (29,047) 334,260 898 339,266
- - 643 - 643
(336,574) (29,047) 334,903 898 29,820
374,516 - - - 374,516
- - (257,360) - (257,360)
(26,897) - - - (26,897)
347,619 - (257,360) - 90,259
103,472 137 99,235 3,720 206,564
103,472 137 99,235 3,720 206,564
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contracts (M otor-TPL) (continued)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities —
opening

Insurance contract assets — opening
Opening balance — net

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses
Onerous contracts recognized

Changes that relate to past service
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

I nsurance service expenses

Finance income from insurance
contracts

Total changes in the statement of
income

Cashflows

Premiums received

Claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses

Insurance acquisition cashflows paid
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities— closing

Insurance contract assets— closing
Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2022 - Restated

Liability for remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Excluding Estimates of Adjustment
loss present value of for non-
component  Loss component FCF financial risk
26,048 30,684 33,368 2,314 92,414
26,048 30,684 33,368 2,314 92,414
(94,207) - - - (94,207)
- - 89,578 509 90,087
- (1,500) - - (1,500)
- - (11,615) - (11,615)
10,535 - - - 10,535
10,535 (1,500) 77,963 509 87,507
- - (99) - (99)
(83,672) (1,500) 77,864 509 6,799
169,134 - - - 169,134
- - (91,276) - (91,276)
(19,083) - 1,736 (D) (17,348)
150,051 - (89,540) (D) 60,510
92,427 29,184 21,692 2,822 146,125
92,427 29,184 21,692 2,822 146,125
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contracts (Energy)

I nsurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities —
opening

Insurance contract assets — opening
Opening balance — net

Insurancerevenue

I nsurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses
Changesthat relate to past service
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

I nsur ance ser vice expenses

Finance costs from insurance
contracts

Total changesin the statement of
income

Transfer fromLRCtoLIC

Cashflows

Premiums received
Claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses

Insurance acquisition cashflows paid
Total cash inflows (outflows)

I nsur ance contr acts

Insurance contract liabilities—
closing

Insurance contract assets— closing
Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2023

Liability for remaining cover age Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Estimates of Adjustment
Excluding Loss present value of for non-
loss component component FCF financial risk
- - 18,158 921 19,079
- - 18,158 921 19,079
(102,363) - - - (102,363)
- - 34 (241) (207)
- - (5,950) - (5,950)
4,034 - - - 4,034
4,034 - (5,916) (241) (2,123)
- - 154 - 154
(98,329) - (5,762) (241) (104,332)
102,363 - - - 102,363
- - 1 - 1
(4,034) - - - (4,034)
98,329 - 1 - 98,330
- - 12,397 680 13,077
- - 12,397 680 13,077
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contracts (Energy) (continued)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities —
opening

Insurance contract assets — opening
Opening balance — net

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses

Reversal of onerous contracts

Changes that relate to past service
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

I nsurance service expenses

Finance income from insurance
contracts

Total changes in the statement of
income

Cashflows

Premiums received
Claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses

Insurance acquisition cashflows paid
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities— closing
Insurance contract assets— closing
Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2022 - Restated

Liability for remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Excluding Estimates of Adjustment
loss present value of for non-
component  Loss component FCF financial risk
- - 29,461 1,774 31,235
(30,878) - - - (30,878)
(30,878) - 29,461 1,774 357
(142,103) - - - (142,103)
- - (49) (853) (902)
- - (11,263) - (11,263)
5,358 - - - 5,358
5,358 - (11,312) (853) (6,807)
- - 9 - 9
(136,745) - (11,303) (853) (148,901)
172,981 - - - 172,981
(5,358) - - - (5,358)
167,623 - - - 167,623
- - 18,158 921 19,079
- - 18,158 921 19,079

58



UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals 000 unless otherwise stated)

10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contracts (Engineering)

I nsurance contr acts

Insurance contract liabilities —
opening

Insurance contract assets — opening
Opening balance — net

Insurancerevenue

I nsur ance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses

Reversal of onerous contracts

Changes that relate to past service
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

I nsur ance ser vice expenses

Finance costs from insurance
contracts

Total changesin the statement of
income

Transfer fromLRCtoLIC

Cashflows

Premiums received

Claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses

Insurance acquisition cashflows paid

Total cash inflows (outflows)

I nsurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities — closing

Insurance contract assets— closing
Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2023

Liability for remaining cover age Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Estimates of Adjustment
Excluding Loss present value of for non-
loss component component FCF financial risk
151,396 - 22,328 1,356 175,080
151,396 - 22,328 1,356 175,080
(296,103) - - - (296,103)
- - 2,225 (302) 1,923
- - 3,781 - 3,781
32,163 - - - 32,163
32,163 - 6,006 (302) 37,867
- - 561 - 561
(263,940) - 6,567 (302) (257,675)
126,015 - - - 126,015
- - (2,978) - (2,978)
(31,425) - - - (31,425)
94,590 - (2,978) - 91,612
- - 25,917 1,054 26,971
(17,954) - - - (17,954)
(17,954) - 25,917 1,054 9,017
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contracts (Engineering) (continued)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities — opening

Insurance contract assets — opening
Opening balance — net

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses
Onerous contracts recognized

Changes that relate to past service
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

Insurance service expenses

Finance income from insurance
contracts

Total changes in the statement of
income

Cashflows

Premiums received

Claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses

Insurance acquisition cashflows paid
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities — closing

Insurance contract assets — closing
Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2022 - Restated

Liability for remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Excluding Estimates of Adjustment
loss present value of for non-
component  Loss component FCF financial risk
15,323 - 61,483 6,013 82,819
15,323 - 61,483 6,013 82,819
(134,532) - - - (134,532)
- - 2,018 (4,658) (2,640)
- - (37,532) - (37,532)
19,113 - - - 19,113
19,113 - (35,514) (4,658) (21,059)
- - (840) - (840)
(115,419) - (36,354) (4,658) (156,431)
266,215 - - - 266,215
. - (2,855) - (2,855)
(14,723) - 54 1 (14,668)
251,492 - (2,801) 1 248,692
151,396 - 22,328 1,356 175,080
151,396 - 22,328 1,356 175,080
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contracts (Others)

I nsurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities —
opening

Insurance contract assets — opening
Opening balance — net

Insurancerevenue

I nsurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses
Reversal of onerous contracts

Changesthat relate to past service
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

I nsur ance service expenses

Finance costs from insurance
contracts

Total changesin the statement of
income

Cashflows

Premiums received
Claims and other incurred insurance
Sservice expenses

Insurance acquisition cashflows paid
Total cash inflows (outflows)

I nsurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities — closing
Insurance contract assets— closing
Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2023

Liability for remaining cover age Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Estimates of Adjustment
Excluding Loss present value of for non-
loss component component FCF financial risk
- - 23,315 4,509 27,824
(11,197) - - - (11,197)
(11,197) - 23,315 4,509 16,627
(27,231) - - - (27,231)
- - 3,746 (3,720) 26
- - (10,262) - (10,262)
1,957 - - - 1,957
1,957 - (6,516) (3,720) (8,279)
- - 1,186 - 1,186
(25,274) - (5,330) (3,720) (34,324)
22,407 - - - 22,407
- - (3,498) - (3,498)
(1,841) - - - (1,841)
20,566 - (3,498) - 17,068
- - 14,487 789 15,276
(15,905) - - - (15,905)
(15,905) - 14,487 789 (629)
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.1 Insurance contracts (Others) (continued)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities —
opening

Insurance contract assets — opening
Opening balance — net

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses

Reversal of onerous contracts

Changes that relate to past service
Insurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

Insurance service expenses

Finance costs from insurance
contracts

Total changes in the statement of
income

Cashflows

Premiums received

Claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses

Insurance acquisition cashflows paid

Total cash inflows (outflows)

Insurance contracts

Insurance contract liabilities — closing
Insurance contract assets— closing
Closing balance — net

As at 31 December 2022 - Restated

Liability for remaining coverage Liability for incurred claims Total
Risk
Estimates of Adjustment
Excluding Loss present value of for non-
|oss component component FCF financial risk
6,090 637 79,615 14,184 100,526
6,090 637 79,615 14,184 100,526
(35,570) - - - (35,570)
- - 17,800 (9,675) 8,125
- (637) - - (637)
- - (58,773) - (58,773)
2,778 - - - 2,778
2,778 (637) (40,973) (9,675) (48,507)
- - (516) - (516)
(32,792) (637) (41,489) (9,675) 84,593
18,998 - - - 18,998
- - (15,146) - (15,146)
(3,493) - 335 - (3,158)
15,505 - (14,811) - 694
- - 23,315 4,509 27,824
(11,197) - - - (11,197)
(11,197) - 23,315 4,509 16,627
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contracts held (all portfolios)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — opening

Reinsurance contract liabilities —
opening
Opening balance — net

Allocation of reinsurance premium

Amountsrecoverable from
reinsurers

Claims recovered and other directly
attributable expenses
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying
contracts

Changes that relate to past service
Reinsurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation
Amountsrecoverable from
reinsurers— net

Finance income from reinsurance
contracts

Total changesin the statement of
income

Cashflows

Premiums ceded and acquisition cash
flows paid

Recoveries from reinsurance

Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — closing
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
closing

Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2023

Asset for remaining cover age Asset for incurred claims Total
Excluding Estimates of Risk
loss present adjustment
recovery L ossrecovery value of for non-
component component FCF financial risk

(76,119) (12,472) (48,952) (9,843) (147,386)

(76,119) (12,472) (48,952) (9,843) (147,386)

426,585 - - - 426,585

- - (63,681) 6,973 (56,708)

- 12,472 - - 12,472

- - 26,983 - 26,983

- 12,472 (36,698) 6,973 (17,253)

- - (2,016) - (2,016)

426,585 12,472 (38,714) 6,973 407,316

(316,325) - 2 - (316,323)

32,120 - 51,982 - 84,102

(284,205) - 51,984 - (232,221)

- - (35,682) (2,870) (38,552)

66,261 - - - 66,261

66,261 - (35,682) (2,870) 27,709
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contractsheld (all portfolios) (continued)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — opening
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
opening

Opening balance — net

Allocation of reinsurance premium

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
Claims recovered and other directly
attributable expenses

Loss-recovery on onerous underlying
contracts

Changes that relate to past service
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
—net

Finance costs from reinsurance
contracts

Total changes in the statement of
income

Cashflows
Premiums ceded and acquisition
cashflows paid

Recoveries from reinsurance
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — closing
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
closing

Closing balance — net

As at 31 December 2022 - Restated

Asset for remaining coverage Asset for incurred claims Tota
Excluding

Loss Estimatesof  Risk adjustment
recovery Loss recovery present value for non-financial
component component of FCF risk

- (7,166) (148,718) (21,715) (177,599)

18,772 - - - 18,772

18,772 (7,166) (148,718) (21,715) (158,827)

328,895 - - - 328,895

- (5,306) (98,369) 11,872 (91,803)

- - 100,540 - 100,540

- (5,306) 2,171 11,872 8,737

- - 212 - 212

328,895 (5,306) 2,383 11,872 337,844

(504,828) - - - (504,828)

81,042 - 97,383 - 178,425

(423,786) - 97,383 - (326,403)

(76,119) (12,472) (48,952) (9,843) (147,386)

(76,119) (12,472) (48,952) (9,843) (147,386)




UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals 000 unless otherwise stated)

10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contractsheld (M edical)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — opening
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
opening

Opening balance — net

Allocation of reinsurance premium

Amountsrecoverable from
reinsurers

Claims recovered and other directly
attributable expenses
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying
contracts

Changes that relate to past service
Reinsurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation
Amountsrecoverable from
reinsurers— net

Finance income from reinsurance
contracts

Total changesin the statement of
income

Cashflows
Premiums ceded and acquisition
cashflows paid

Recoveries from reinsurance
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — closing
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
closing

Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2023

Asset for remaining coverage Asset for incurred claims Total
Excluding Risk
loss Estimatesof adjustment for
recovery Lossrecovery  present value non-financial
component component of FCF risk

- - (21,637) (676) (22,313)

252 - - - 252

252 - (21,637) (676) (22,061)

25,726 - - - 25,726

- - (10,506) 1,551 (8,955)

- - 1,931 - 1,931

- - (8,575) 1,551 (7,024)

- - (758) - (758)

25,726 - (9,333) 1,551 17,944

(7,996) - - - (7,996)

(2,800) - 15,409 - 12,609

(10,796) - 15,409 - 4,613

- - (15,561) - (15,561)

15,182 - - 875 16,057

15,182 - (15,561) 875 496
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals 000 unless otherwise stated)

10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)
10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contractsheld (Medical) (continued)

As at 31 December 2022 - Restated

Asset for remaining coverage Asset for incurred claims Total
Excluding
Loss Estimates of
recovery  Lossrecovery present value isk adjustment for
component component of FCF non-financial risk
Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets — opening (1,682) - (21,395) - (23,077)
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
opening - - - 244 244
Opening balance — net (1,682) - (21,395) 244 (22,833)
Allocation of reinsurance premium 5,301 - - - 5,301
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
Claims recovered and other directly
attributable expenses - - (9,580) (920) (10,500)
Onerous contracts recognized - - - - -
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying
contracts - - - - -
Changes that relate to past service - - (2,035) - (2,035)
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers - - - (11,615) (920) (12,535)
net
Finance costs from reinsurance - - 16 - 16
contracts
Total changes in the statement of 5,301 - (11,599) (920) (7,218)
income
Cashflows
Premiums ceded and acquisition (5,049) - - - (5,049)
cashflows paid
Recoveries from reinsurance 1,682 - 11,357 - 13,039
Total cash inflows/ (outflows) (3,367) - 11,357 - 7,990
Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets — closing - - (21,637) (676) (22,313)
Reinsurance contract liabilities — 252 - - - 252
closing
Closing balance — net 252 - (21,637) (676) (22,061)
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NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contractsheld (Motor- Comprehensive)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — opening
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
opening

Opening balance — net

Allocation of reinsurance premium

Amountsrecoverable from
reinsurers

Claims recovered and other directly
attributable expenses
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying
contracts

Changes that relate to past service
Reinsurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation
Amountsrecoverable from
reinsurers— net

Finance income from reinsurance
contracts

Total changesin the statement of
income

Cashflows
Premiums ceded and acquisition
cashflows paid

Recoveries from reinsurance
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — closing
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
closing

Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2023

Asset for remaining cover age Asset for incurred claims Total
Excluding Risk
loss Estimatesof adjustment for
recovery Lossrecovery  present value non-financial
component component of FCF risk

(8,063) (5,316) (873) (1,250) (15,502)

(8,063) (5,316) (873) (1,250) (15,502)

9,610 - - - 9,610

- - (17,072) 1,140 (15,932)

- 5,316 - - 5,316

- - 15,128 - 15,128

- 5,316 (1,944) 1,140 4512

- - (66) - (66)

9,610 5,316 (2,010) 1,140 14,056

10,732 - - - 10,732

(4,588) - 5,588 - 1,000

6,144 - 5,588 - 11,732

- - - (110) (110)

7,691 - 2,705 - 10,396

7,691 - 2,705 (110) 10,286
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UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY
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NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals 000 unless otherwise stated)

10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)
10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contractsheld (Motor- Comprehensive) (continued)

As at 31 December 2022 - Restated

Asset for remaining coverage Asset for incurred claims Total
Excluding
Loss Estimates of
recovery Loss recovery present value  Risk adjustment for
component component of FCF non-financial risk

Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets — (6,784) (4,495) - (1,276) (12,555)
opening
Reinsurance contract liabilities — - - 1,535 - 1,535
opening
Opening balance — net (6,784) (4,495) 1,535 (1,276) (11,020)
Allocation of reinsurance premium 33,553 - - - 33,553
Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers
Claims recovered and other directly
attributable expenses - - (47,166) 26 (47,140)
Loss-recovery on onerous
underlying contracts - (821) - - (821)
Changesthat relate to past service - - (1,929) - (1,929)
Amounts recoverable from (821) (49,095) 26 (49,890)
reinsurers - net -
Finance costs from reinsurance - - 38 - 38
contracts
Total changes in the statement of 33,553 (821) (49,057) 26 (16,299)
income
Cashflows
Premiums ceded and acquisition (47,366) - - - (47,366)
cashflows paid
Recoveries from reinsurance 12,534 - 46,649 - 59,183
Total cash inflows/ (outflows) (34,832) - 46,649 - 11,817
Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets — (8,063) (5,316) (873) (1,250) (15,502)
closing
Reinsurance contract liabilities — - - - - -
closing
Closing balance — net (8,063) (5,316) (873) (1,250) (15,502)

68



UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals 000 unless otherwise stated)

10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contractsheld (Motor-TPL)

Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets —
opening

Reinsurance contract liabilities —
opening

Opening balance — net

Allocation of reinsurance
premium

Amounts recover able from
reinsurers

Claims recovered and other
directly attributable expenses
Loss-recovery on onerous
underlying contracts

Changes that relate to past service
Reinsurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

Amounts recover able from
reinsurers— net

Finance income from reinsurance
contracts

Total changesin the statement
of income

Cashflows

Premiums ceded and acquisition
cashflows paid

Recoveries from reinsurance
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)
Reinsur ance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets —
closing

Reinsurance contract liabilities —
closing

Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2023

Asset for remaining cover age Asset for incurred claims Total
Excluding
loss Estimates of

recovery  Lossrecovery  present value Risk adjustment for
component component of FCF non-financial risk

(24,107) (7,156) - (500) (31,763)

- - 8,055 - 8,055

(24,107) (7,156) 8,055 (500) (23,708)

47,699 - - - 47,699

- - (32,486) 87 (32,399)

- 7,156 - - 7,156

- - 1,149 - 1,149

- 7,156 (31,337) 87 (24,094)

- - 239 - 239

47,699 7,156 (31,098) 87 23,844

(12,392) - 1 - (12,391)

(7,565) - 25,160 - 17,595

(19,957) - 25,161 - 5,204

- - - (413) (413)

3,635 - 2,118 - 5,753

3,635 - 2,118 (413) 5,340

69



UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)
10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contractsheld (Motor-TPL) (continued)

As at 31 December 2022 — Restated

Asset for remaining coverage Asset for incurred claims Total
Excluding
loss Estimates of Risk adjustment
recovery Lossrecovery present value Hr non-financial
component component of FCF risk
Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets — opening (8,365) (2,614) - (1,740) (12,719)
Reinsurance contract liabilities — - - 408 - 408
opening
Opening balance — net (8,365) (2,614) 408 (1,740) (12,3112)
Allocation of reinsurance premium 20,567 - - - 20,567
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
Claims recovered and other directly - - (26,399) 1,239 (25,160)
attributable expenses
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying - (4,542) - - (4,542)
contracts
Changes that relate to past service - - 8,309 - 8,309
Reinsurance acquisition cashflows - - - - -
amortisation
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers - (4,542) (18,090) 1,239 (21,393)
— net
Finance income from reinsurance - - 45 - 45
contracts
Total changes in the statement of 20,567 (4,542) (18,045) 1,239 (781)
income
Cashflows
Premiums ceded and acquisition (51,080) - - 1 (51,079)
cashflows paid
Recoveries from reinsurance 14,771 - 25,692 - 40,463
Total cash inflows/ (outflows) (36,309) - 25,692 1 (10,616)
Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets— closing (24,107) (7,156) - (500) (31,763)
Reinsurance contract liabilities — - - 8,055 - 8,055
closing
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contracts held (Energy)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — opening
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
opening

Opening balance — net

Allocation of reinsurance premium

Amountsrecoverable from
reinsurers

Claims recovered and other directly
attributable expenses
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying
contracts

Changesthat relate to past service
Reinsurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation
Amountsrecoverable from
reinsurers— net

Finance income from reinsurance
contracts

Total changesin the statement of
income

Transfer from ARCtoAIC

Cashflows
Premiums ceded and acquisition
cashflows paid

Recoveries from reinsurance
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — closing
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
closing

Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2023

Asset for remaining cover age Asset for incurred claims Total
Excluding

loss Estimatesof  Risk adjustment
recovery Lossrecovery present value for non-financial
component component of FCF risk

- - (11,254) (376) (11,630)

28 - - - 28

28 - (11,254) (376) (11,602)

99,189 - - - 99,189

- - 88 (242) (154)

. - 5,864 - 5,864

- - 5,952 (242) 5710

; - (63) - (63)

99,189 - 5,889 (242) 104,836

(100,605) - 1 - (100,604)

1,411 - - - 1,411

(99,194) - 1 - (99,193)

- - (5,364) (618) (5,982)

23 - - - 23

23 - (5,364) (618) (5,959)
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contractsheld (Energy) (continued)

Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets —
opening

Reinsurance contract liabilities —
opening

Opening balance — net

Allocation of reinsurance premium

Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers

Claims recovered and other directly
attributable expenses
Loss-recovery on onerous
underlying contracts

Changes that relate to past service
Reinsurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers — net

Finance income from reinsurance
contracts

Total changes in the statement of
income

Cashflows
Premiums ceded and acquisition
cashflows paid

Recoveries from reinsurance
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)
Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — closing
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
closing

Closing balance — net

As at 31 December 2022 — Restated

Asset for remaining coverage Asset for incurred claims Total

Excluding Risk
loss Estimatesof  adjustment for
recovery Loss recovery present value non-financial
component component of FCF risk

- - (21,283) (1,743) (23,026)

32,439 - - - 32,439

32,439 - (21,283) (1,743) 9,413

137,975 - - - 137,975

- - 43 1,368 1,411

- - 10,774 - 10,774

- - 10,817 1,368 12,185

- - 9) - 9)

137,975 - 10,808 1,368 150,151

(169,965) - - - (169,965)

(421) - (779) 1) (1,201)

(170,386) - (779) (1) (171,166)

- - (11,254) (376) (11,630)

28 - - - 28

28 - (11,254) (376) (11,602)
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)
10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contracts held (Engineering)

Asat 31 December 2023

Asset for remaining coverage Asset for incurred claims Total
Excluding Risk
loss Estimates of adjustment
recovery  Lossrecovery present value for non-
component component of FCF  financial risk
Reinsur ance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets — opening (42,957) - (10,164) (1,884) (55,005)
Reinsurance contract liabilities — - - - - -
opening
Opening balance — net (42,957) - (10,164) (1,884) (55,005)
Allocation of reinsurance premium 224,659 - - - 224,659
Amountsrecoverable from
reinsurers
Claims recovered and other directly - - (1,425) 983 (442)
attributable expenses
Loss-recovery on onerous underlying - - - - -
contracts
Changes that relate to past service - - (4,516) - (4,516)
Reinsurance acquisition cashflows - - - - -
amortisation
Amountsrecoverable from - - (5,941) 983 (4,958)
reinsurers— net
Finance income from reinsurance - - (530) - (530)
contracts
Total changesin the statement of 224,659 - (6,471) 983 219,171
income
Transfer from ARC to AlIC - - - - -
Cashflows
Premiums ceded and acquisition (176,260) - - - (176,260)
cashflows paid
Recoveries from reinsurance 36,184 - 1,842 - 38,026
Total cash inflows/ (outflows) (140,076) - 1,842 - (138,234)
Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets— closing - - (14,793) (901) (15,694)
Reinsurance contract liabilities — 41,626 - - - 41,626
closing
Closi ng balance — net 41,626 - (14,793) (901) 25,932

73



UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY
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NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contracts held (Engineering) (continued)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — opening
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
opening

Opening balance — net

Allocation of reinsurance premium

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
Claims recovered and other directly
attributable expenses

Loss-recovery on onerous underlying
contracts

Changesthat relate to past service
Reinsurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
—net

Finance income from reinsurance
contracts

Total changesin the statement of
income

Cashflows
Premiums ceded and acquisition
cashflows paid

Recoveries from reinsurance
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — closing
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
closing

Closing balance — net

As at 31 December 2022 — Restated

Asset for remaining coverage Asset for incurred claims Tota

Excluding Risk
loss Estimatesof  adjustment for
recovery Loss recovery present value  non-financial
component component of FCF risk

- - (45,939) (5,952) (51,891)

14,528 - - - 14,528

14,528 - (45,939) (5,952) (37,363)

105,441 - - - 105,441

- - (1,923) 4,068 2,145

- - 35,976 - 35,976

- - 34,053 4,068 38,121

- - 520 - 520

105,441 - 34,573 4,068 144,082

(211,778) - - - (211,778)

48,852 - 1,202 - 50,054

(162,926) - 1,202 - (161,724)

(42,957) - (10,164) (1,884) (55,005)

(42,957) - (10,164) (1,884) (55,005)
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contracts held (Others)
Asat 31 December 2023
Asset for remaining coverage Asset for incurred claims Total
Excluding Risk
loss Estimates of adjustment
recovery L ossrecovery present value for non-
component component of FCF  financial risk
Reinsurance contracts
Reinsurance contract assets — opening (1,271) - (13,079) (5,157) (19,507)
Reinsurance contract liabilities — - - - - -
opening
Opening balance — net (1,271) - (13,079) (5,157) (19,507)
Allocation of reinsurance premium 19,700 - - - 19,700

Amountsrecoverable from

reinsurers

Claims recovered and other directly - - (2,278) 3,454 1,176
attributable expenses

Loss-recovery on onerous underlying - - - - -

contracts

Changes that relate to past service - - 7,428 - 7,428
Reinsurance acquisition cashflows - - - - -
amortisation

Amountsrecoverable from - - 5,150 3,454 8,604

reinsurers— net

Finance income from reinsurance - - (837) - (837)
contracts

Total changesin the statement of 19,700 - 4,313 3,454 27,467
income

Transfer from ARCto AIC - - - - -

Cashflows

Premiums ceded and acquisition (29,803) - - - (29,803)

cashflows paid

Recoveries from reinsurance 9,478 - 3,979 - 13,457

Total cash inflows/ (outflows) (20,325) - 3,979 - (16,346)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — closing (1,896) - (4,787) (1,703) (8,386)

Reinsurance contract liabilities — - - - - -
closing

Closing balance - net (1,896) - (4,787) (1,703) (8,386)
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10. Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued)

10.2  Analysisby remaining coverage and incurred claims (continued)

10.2.2 Reinsurance contracts held (Others) (continued)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — opening
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
opening

Opening balance — net

Allocation of reinsurance premium

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
Claims recovered and other directly
attributable expenses

Loss-recovery on onerous underlying
contracts

Changesthat relate to past service
Reinsurance acquisition cashflows
amortisation

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
—net

Finance income from reinsurance
contracts

Total changes in the statement of
income

Cashflows
Premiums ceded and acquisition
cashflows paid

Recoveries from reinsurance
Total cash inflows/ (outflows)

Reinsurance contracts

Reinsurance contract assets — closing
Reinsurance contract liabilities —
closing

Closing balance — net

Asat 31 December 2022 — Restated
Asset for remaining coverage Asset for incurred claims Total
Excluding Risk
loss Estimatesof  adjustment for
recovery Loss recovery present value  non-financial
component component of FCF risk
(11,364) (58) (62,045) (11,248) (84,715)
(11,364) (58) (62,045) (11,248) (84,715)
26,058 - - - 26,058
- - (13,346) 6,091 (7,255)
- 58 - - 58
- - 49,445 - 49,445
- 58 36,099 6,091 42,248
- - (398) - (398)
26,058 58 35,701 6,091 67,908
(19,588) - - - (19,588)
3,623 - 13,265 - 16,888
(15,965) - 13,265 - (2,700)
(1,271) - (13,079) (5,157) (19,507)
(1,271) - (13,079) (5,157) (19,507)
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11. Right-of- use assets and lease liabilities
a) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position
The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets— net

1 January

Additions during the year
Depreciation during the year
De-recognise during the year
31 December

L easeliabilities

Commitments in relation to lease obligations are payabl e as follows:

Within one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years

Future finance costs
Leaseliabilities

Movement in lease liabilities is as follows:

1 January

Addition during the year
Finance costs

De-recognise during the year
Payment during the year

31 December

b)  Amountsrecognised in the statement of income

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

6,178 7,089

669 4,116

(2,686) (2,798)

- (2,229)

4,161 6,178

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

3,526 3,073

384 2,744

- 349

3,910 6,166

(133) (325)

3,777 5,841

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

5,841 6,187

669 4,116

177 238

- (2,231)

(2,910) (2,569)

3,777 5,841

Total finance costs recognised in the statement of income pertaining to lease liabilities amounted to Saudi Riyals 177

thousand for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: SAR 238 thousand).

c) Detailsfor leasing activities of the Company

The Company | eases office premises and various point-of-sal e stores across the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Rental contracts

are typically made for a period of 1 monthsto 3 years, but may have extension options.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
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12.  Property and equipment

Cost:

1 January 2023
Additions

Digposals

Transfer (note 13)

At 31 December 2023

Accumulated
depreciation:

1 January 2023
Chargefor the year
Disposals

31 December 2023

Net book value:
31 December 2023

Cost:

1 January 2022
Additions

Disposal

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated
depreciation:

1 January 2022
Charge for the year
Disposal

31 December 2022
Net book value:

31 December 2022

Furniture Computers Capital
and and M otor L easehold work in

fixtures eguipment Vehicles improvements progress Total

9,349 20,743 279 9,405 5,831 45,607

58 1,674 - 49 3,681 5,462

(149) (306) - (625) - (1,080)

- - - (5,262) (5,262)

9,258 22,111 279 8,829 4,250 44,727

8,733 18,291 225 7,876 - 35,125

306 1,758 33 1,242 - 3,339

(149) (306) - (625) - (1,080)

8,890 19,743 258 8,493 - 37,384

368 2,368 21 336 4,250 7,343
Furniture Computer Capita
and and Motor Leasehold work in

fixtures equipment Vehicles improvements progress Tota

9,222 20,068 393 9,352 1,204 40,239

127 675 40 53 4,627 5,522

- - (154) - - (154)

9,349 20,743 279 9,405 5,831 45,607

8,399 15,917 341 6,460 - 31,117

334 2,374 38 1,416 - 4,162

- - (154) - - (154)

8,733 18,291 225 7,876 - 35,125

616 2,452 54 1,529 5,831 10,482

The cost of other items of property and equipment is depreciated on the straight-line method to allocate the cost over
estimated useful lives, asfollows:

Furniture and fixtures

Computer & equipment

Motor vehicles
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13. Intangible assets

Computer Capital work

software in progress Total
Cost:
1 January 2023 - 12,715 12,715
Additions - 6,268 6,268
Transfer (note 12) 5,262 - 5,262
At 31 December 2023 5,262 18,983 24,245
Accumulated amortization:
1 January 2023 - - -
Charge for the year 1,051 - 1,051
31 December 2023 1,051 - 1,051
Net book value:
31 December 2023 4,211 18,983 23,194

Computer Capita work

software in progress Totd
Cost:
1 January 2022 - 9,813 9,813
Additions - 2,902 2,902
At 31 December 2022 - 12,715 12,715
Accumulated amortization:
1 January 2022 - - -
Charge for the year - - -
31 December 2022 - - -
Net book value:
31 December 2022 - 12,715 12,715

The Company has an ongoing software development project for which it has incurred a cost of SAR 6.3 million in current
year (2022: SAR 2.9 million) in terms of development cost.

14. Goodwill

Effective 31 December 2008, the Company acquired the insurance operations of UCA Insurance Bahrain B.S.C. (‘the
seller’) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia for a total consideration of SAR 656.95 million with a goodwill of SAR 78.4
million. The goodwill amount payable to the seller was paid in full subsequent to 2008, after obtaining SAMA approvals.

As at 31 December 2023, an independent impairment study was conducted in accordance with the requirements of the
International Accounting Standard (IAS 36) to review the carrying amounts of goodwill recognised. For the impairment
testing, assets are grouped into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Management considers the overall insurance portfolios of the
Company as one CGU. The management reviews goodwill annually for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount has been determined based on value in use. As at the reporting date, impairment testing based on
expected discounted cash flows was performed. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows based on 5-year
management’s formal business plan projected up to the year 2028, discounted to their present value using the following
key assumptions:
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14.  Goodwill — (continued)

Key assumptions 2023 2022
EBITDA margin (average of next five years) 5.7% 5%
Discount rate 14.8% 18%
Terminal value growth rate 2.5% 2%

The calculation of value-in-use is most sensitive to the assumptions on discount rate applied to cash flow projections and
projected EBITDA margins.

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions:

With regard to the assessment of the value-in-use, management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the
key assumptions above would cause the carrying val ue of the CGU including goodwill to materially exceed its recoverable
amount. The implications of changes to the key assumptions are described bel ow.

i) Projected EBITDA margin:

The projected EBITDA margin in the forecasted period has been estimated to be at an average of 5.7%. If al other
assumptions kept the same; areduction of margin by 4% would give a value-in-use equal to the current carrying amount.

ii) Discount rate:

The projected discount rate in the forecasted period has been estimated to be at an average of 14.8% (2022: 18%). If all
other assumptions kept the same; an increase in discount rate by 9% (2022: 9%) would give a value-in-use equal to the
current carrying amount.

iii) Terminal value growth rate:

If al other assumptions remain constant; a decrease in projected terminal value growth rate in the forecasted period to 0%
would give a value-in-use which exceeds the carrying value by SAR 69.7 million (2022: SAR 69.7 million).

Based on the assumptions made, the value in use calculated above exceeded the carrying amount of goodwill and hence no
impairment was recognized. Based on the management experts’ assessment of value in use, the management believes that
no reasonable possible change in any of the above assumptions would cause the carrying value to materialy exceed its
recoverable amount at the reporting date. The most significant assumptions used in determination of value in use
calculations are weighted average cost of capital and long-term growth rate.
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15. Statutory deposit

In accordance with Article 58 of the Insurance Implementing Regulations of 1A, the Company is required to maintain a
statutory deposit of not less than 10% of its paid-up capital. The statutory deposit is maintained with a Saudi Arabian bank.
Accrued income on this deposit is payable to Insurance Authority (1A) amounting to SAR 1.5 million (31 December 2022:
SAR 6.7 million) and this deposit can be withdrawn only with the consent of |A.

In accordance with the instruction received from SAMA vide their circular dated 1 March 2016, the Company has disclosed
the commission due on the statutory deposit as at 31 December 2023 as an asset and aliability in these financial statements.
In accordance with the request received from IA on 30 August 2023 the Company has released the accrued income on
statutory deposit to |A up to 31 December 2022 amounting to Saudi Riyals 6.7 million. The statutory deposit is shown on
the statement of financial position net of impairment allowance. During the year, the Insurance Authority has been
established by a roya decree as the insurance regulator. Previoudly issued regulations by SAMA will be upheld until the
Insurance Authority issues updated regulations. Therefore, the accrued income liability is payable to the Insurance
Authority.

The gross carrying amount of statutory deposit represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk on these
financial assets which are categorized under investment grade and Stage 1. Investment grade includes those financial assets
having credit exposure equivalent to Standard and Poor's rating of AAA to BBB. The Company’s exposures to credit risk
are not collateralized.

16. Accrued expenses and other liabilities

31 December 31 December 2022

2023 (Restated)

VAT payables 7,757 1,562
Suppliers and other creditors 6,211 3,468
Withholding tax payable 2,844 9,854
Accrued expenses 2,403 524
Others 1,137 1,126
20,352 16,534

17.  Employees’ benefit obligations
17.1 General description of the plan

The Company operates a defined benefit plan in line with the Labour Law requirement in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
The end-of-service benefit payments under the plan are based on the employees' fina salaries and allowances and their
cumulative years of service at the date of their termination of employment, as defined by the conditions stated in the Labour
Laws of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Employees’ end-of-service benefit plans are unfunded plans and the benefit payment
obligation are met when they fall due upon termination of employment.

17.2 Movement of defined benefit obligationsis asfollows:

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
1 January 9,686 10,029
Current service cost 2,022 2,246
Finance costs 439 218
Payments (652) (1,516)
Remeasurement loss/ (gain) 48 (1,291)
31 December 11,543 9,686

81



UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals 000 unless otherwise stated)

17 Employees’ benefit obligations (continued)
17.2 Movement of defined benefit obligationsis asfollows: (continued)
a. Amountsrecognised in the statements of income and compr ehensiveincome

The amounts recognised in the statements of income and comprehensive income related to employees’ benefit obligations
are asfollows:

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
Current service result 2,022 2,246
Interest expense 439 218
Total amount recognised in the statement of income 2,461 2,464
Remeasurement loss/ (gain) on employees benefit obligations 48 (1,291)
Total amount recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 2,509 1,173

17.3 Principal actuarial assumptions

The following range of significant actuarial assumptions was used by the Company for the valuation of employees’
defined benefit obligations:

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
Discount rate 4.50% 4.55%
Salary growth rate 4% 4%

17.4 Sensitivity analysisfor actuarial assumptions

The impact of changesin sensitivities on present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

Discount rate

- Increase by 1% (662) (582)

- Decrease by 1% 733 658
Salary growth rate

- Increase by 1% 729 651

- Decrease by 1% (671) 1(587

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice,
thisisunlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When cal culating the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of defined benefit obligation
calculated with projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied when cal culating the benefit
obligations.

175 Expected maturity analysis

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 6.06 years (2022: 6.21 years). The expected maturity
analysis of discounted employees’ benefit obligationsis as follows:

Lessthan a Between1-2 Between 2-5 Over 5
year years years years Total
31 December 2023 1,817 1,287 3,803 4,636 11,543
31 December 2022 1,512 1,062 3,383 3,729 9,686

18. Sharecapital

The authorized, issued and paid-up capital of the Company at 31 December 2023 is SAR 400 million divided into 40 million
shares of SAR 10 each (31 December 2022: SAR 400 million divided into 40 million shares of SAR 10 each).
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19. Insurance serviceresults

An analysis of insurance revenue, insurance expenses and net income / (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held by portfolio of contracts for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022 is included in following tables respectively. Additional information on amounts recognized in statement of income is included in the insurance contract balances
reconciliation.

For theyear ended 31 December 2023:

Motor-

Medical Comprehensive Motor-TPL Energy Engineering Others Total
Insurance revenue from contracts
measured under PAA 102,752 163,594 369,729 102,363 296,103 27,230 1,061,771
Insurancerevenue 102,752 163,594 369,729 102,363 296,103 27,230 1,061,771
Incurred claims and other incurred
insurance service expenses* (116,294) (138,430) (273,044) 207 (1,923) 27) (529,511)
Changes that relate to past service -
adjustmentsto the LIC 13,328 7,648 (62,114) 5,950 (3,781) 10,262 (28,707)
(Loss) / reversal of losses on onerous
contracts 319 16,641 29,047 - - - 46,007
Insurance acquisition cash flows
amortisation (13,557) (28,243) (33,155) (4,034) (32,163) (1,959) (113,111)
Total insurance service (expenses) /
Income (116,204) (142,384) (339,266) 2,123 (37,867) 8,276 (625,322)

*Thisincludes surplus distribution of SAR 0.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (Also see note 32).
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19. Insurance service results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023: (continued)

Reinsurance income - contracts
measured under the PAA
Premium ceded on reinsurance
contracts held

Reinsurance premium ceded
Claims recovered and other directly
attributable expenses

Changes that relate to past service -
adjustmentsto incurred claims

Net (expenses) / income from
reinsurance contracts

I nsurance service result

Motor -

M edical Comprehensive Motor-TPL Energy Engineering Others Total
(25,726) (9,610) (47,699) (99,189) (224,659) (19,700) (426,583)
(25,726) (9,610) (47,699) (99,189) (224,659) (19,700) (426,583)
8,956 10,617 25,243 154 442 (1,176) 44,236
(1,931) (15,128) (1,149) (5,864) 4516 (7,429) (26,985)
(18,701) (14,121) (23,605) (104,899) (219,701) (28,305) (409,332)
(32,153) 7,089 6,858 (413) 38,535 7,201 27,117
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19. I nsurance serviceresults (continued)

For theyear ended 31 December 2022:

Motor-

Medical Comprehensive Motor-TPL Energy Engineering Others Tota
31 December 2022
Insurance revenue from
contracts measured under
PAA 100,436 127,486 94,207 142,103 134,532 35,569 634,333
Insurance revenue 100,436 127,486 94,207 142,103 134,532 35,569 634,333
Incurred claims and other
incurred service expenses (102,215) (170,613) (90,087) 902 2,640 (8,124) (367,497)
Changes that relate to past
service (4,674) (7,907) 11,615 11,263 37,533 58,773 106,603
Reversal / (losses) of losses
0n Onerous contracts 6,362 (17,856) 1,500 - - 637 (9,357)
Insurance acquisition cash
flows amortisation (11,912) (29,724) (10,535) (5,358) (19,113) (2,778) (69,420)
Total insurance service
expenses (112,439) (216,100) (87,507) 6,807 21,060 48,508 (339,671)
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19. I nsurance serviceresults (continued)

For theyear ended 31 December 2022: (continued)

Motor-

Medical Comprehensive Motor-TPL Energy Engineering Others Total
Reinsurance income -
contracts measured under the
PAA
Premium ceded on reinsurance
contracts held (5,301) (33,553) (20,567) (137,975) (105,441) (26,058) (328,895)
Reinsurance premium ceded (5,301) (33,553) (20,567) (137,975) (105,441) (26,058) (328,895)
Claimsrecovered 10,500 47,961 29,702 (1,411) (2,145) 7,196 91,803
Changes that relate to past
service 2,035 1,929 (8,309) (10,774) (35,976) (49,445) (100,540)
Net (expenses) / income from
reinsurance contracts 7,234 16,337 826 (150,160) (143,562) (68,307) (337,632)
Insurance service result (4,769) (72,277) 7,526 (1,250) 12,030 15,770 (42,970)
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20. Investment income

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

(Restated)
Commission income from financial assets not measured at
FVTPL
Term deposits 2,229 -
Sukuks 7,184 8,113
9,413 8,113
Gain/ (loss) on investments measured at FV TPL 741 (1,323)
Dividend income - 187
Net gain / (loss) on investments measured at FVTPL 741 (1,136)
Total investment income 10,154 6,977
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21. Insurance finance costs - net
An analysis of the net insurance finance income / (costs) by portfolio of contracts for years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 respectively is presented below:

For theyear ended 31 December 2023:

M otor -

Medical Comprehensive Motor-TPL Energy Engineering Others Total
31 December 2023
Finance costs from insurance contracts
issued
Interest accreted (1,159) (1,006) (643) (154) (561) (1,186) (4,709)
Finance costs from insurance contracts
issued (1,159) (1,006) (643) (154) (561) (1,186) (4,709)
Finance income from reinsurance
contracts held
Interest accreted 758 66 (239) 63 530 838 2,016
Finance income from reinsurance
contractsheld 758 66 (239) 63 530 838 2,016
Finance (costs) / income — net (401) (940) (882) (91) (31) (348) (2,693)
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21. I nsurance finance costs— net (continued)

For theyear ended 31 December 2022:

Medical otor- Comprehensive Motor-TPL Energy Engineering Others Total
31 December 2022
Finance costs from insurance contracts i ssued
Interest accreted (26) 99 393 9 840 515 1,812
Net finance income / (costs) from insurance
contracts issued (26) 99 393 (9) 840 515 1,812
Finance income from reinsurance contracts held
Interest accreted (16) (38) (45) 9 (520) 398 (212)
Net finance costs from reinsurance contracts
held (16) (38) (45) 9 (520) 398 (212)
Finance income/ costs - net (42 61 348 - 320 913 1,600
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22. Share of surplusfrom insurance pools

31 December 2022
31 December 2023 (Restated)
Share of surplus from Umrah and Hajj scheme (Note 22.1) 13,833 14,196

22.1 Share of surplusfrom Umrah and Hajj scheme

This represents the Company's share in the surplus for general accident product arising from the Umrah & Haj scheme. The
Company with twenty-seven other insurance companies operating in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, entered into an
agreement with CCl effective from 1 January 2020. The compulsory Umrah product is offered by the ministry and approved
by SAMA for insurance of pilgrims coming from outside of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia except for citizens of the Gulf
Cooperation Council countries. This covers general accidents and health benefits of the pilgrims entering the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabiato perform Umrah. The agreement terms are for 4 years starting from 1 January 2020 and it is renewable for
another four years subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement.

23. Other operating expenses

31 December 2022

31 December 2023 (Restated)

Salaries and benefits 23,059 14,189
Lega and professional fees (23.1) 5,882 4,463
Office supplies 5,130 2,030
Depreciation and amortisation 1,669 2,081
Depreciation on right-of -use assets 1,343 1,399
Communication expenses 2,173 541
Training and education 107 656
Utilities 527 533
Finance cost on lease liability 88 117
Others 3,638 7,436
43,616 33,445

23.1 Auditors’ remuneration for the statutory audit and review of the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 amountsto SAR 1.4 million (2022: SAR 0.9 million). Fee for other statutory and related services provided
by the auditors to the Company amountsto SAR 0.7 million (2022: SAR 0.5 million).
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24. Zakat and income tax

Significant components of zakat base of the Company attributable to the Saudi sharehol ders, which are subject to adjustment
under zakat and income tax regulations, are shareholders’ equity at the beginning of the year, adjusted net income and
certain other items. Zakat base has been computed based on the Company’s understanding of the zakat regulations enforced
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The zakat regulations in Saudi Arabia are subject to different interpretations, and the
assessments to be raised by the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (“ZATCA”) could be different from the declaration filed
by the Company.

The differences between the financial and the zakatable / taxabl e results are mainly due to certain adjustments in accordance
with the relevant fiscal regulations.

a The Zakat charge for the year is calculated based on the following:

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
SAR’000 SAR’000

Share capital 400,000 400,000
Statutory deposit (60,000) (60,000)
Accumulated losses (146,662) (149,752)
Fair value reserve 41,540 (5,979)
End of services benefits 9,028 2,934
Actuaria gain 4,225 1,292
Investments (43,363) (1,923)
Other opening provisions 47,672 92,378
Goodwill (78,400) (78,400)
Property and equipment — net (7,343) (23,197)
Intangible assets — net (23,194) -
Deferred policy acquisition cost - (23,824)
Lease liabilities 3,777 5,841
Right-of-use assets (4,161) (6,178)
Zakat base 143,119 153,192
Attributable to Saudi Sharehol ders @ 99.89% 142,962 111,913
Opening Zakat provision for Saudi 9,596 8,508
Adjusted Zakat base 152,558 121,605
Zakat @ 2.578% 3,932 3,134
Profit / (loss) for the year 9,562 (39,861)
Fines and penalties 5 568
Provision for doubtful debts - (3,321)
Other adjustments 211 -
End of services benefits 2,461 2,465
Adjusted profit / (loss) for the year 12,239 (40,149)
Zakat @ 2.5% 306 -
Income tax

Attributable income to Non-Saudi Shareholder @ 0.11% - -
Income tax @ 20% - -
Zakat and income tax 4,238 3134
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24. Zakat and income tax (continued)

Movement in zakat provision is asfollows:

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
SAR’000 SAR’000
Balance at the beginning of the year 11,508 13,546
Charge for the current year 4,270 3,000
Paid during the year (3,211) (5,038)
Balance at the end of the year 12,567 11,508
The movement in the income tax payable is as follows:
31 December 31 December
2022 2022
SAR’000 SAR’000
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,300 1,300
Charge for the current year - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,300 1,300
Total 13,867 12,808

Zakat is payable at 2.578% of the approximate zakat base (excluding adjusted net profit for the year) and 2.5% of adjusted
net profit for the year attributable to Saudi shareholders.

b. Statusof zakat assessments

The Zakat is applicable on 99.89% (2022: 99%) of the shareholders while income tax on 0.11% (2022: 1%) of the
sharehol ders. The Company hasfiled its zakat and income tax declarations for the periods ended 31 December 2009 to 2022
and obtained restricted zakat and tax certificates. The following are the detailed outstanding assessments as of the date of
the financial statements:

Assessment years 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008

During 2017, the Company received the zakat assessments for the years 2005 to 2008 from the ZATCA with regards to the
insurance operations transferred from UCA Insurance Bahrain BSC claiming zakat liability amounting to SAR 6.01 million
and withholding tax liability amounting to SAR 16.09 million. Management has filed an objection against the above
assessments and is confident of receiving a favorable outcome. Further, the Company has issued a bank guarantee in favor
of ZATCA amounting to SAR 22.09 million (2021: SAR 22.09 million) against such assessments (see note 34). Management
is of the view that any additiona liability as aresult of these assessments will eventually be charged to the shareholders of
the UCA Insurance Bahrain BSC.

Assessment years 2009 — 2011

The Company hasfiled its Zakat/tax declarations for the years ended 31 December 2009 to 2011 and obtained the necessary
Zakat/tax certificates. The ZATCA issued the amended assessment based on the decision of the Preliminary Objection
Committee and claimed additional Zakat and tax and withholding tax for a total of SAR 27.1 million. The Company had
finalized its Zakat, tax and withholding tax status for the said years.

Assessment years 2012 and 2013
During the year 2018, ZATCA had issued assessments for the years 2012 and 2013 claiming additional zakat and income
tax liability amounting to SAR 15.84 million. The Company will escalate the case to the GSTC in order to assign a hearing

session and will proceed for final settlement with the Dispute Resolution Committee and expect to settle about SAR 7.05
million.
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24. Zakat and income tax (continued)
b. Statusof zakat assessments (continued)
Assessment years 2014 to 2020

The Company hasfiled its Zakat/tax declarations for the years ended 31 December 2014 to 2020 and obtained the necessary
Zakat/tax certificates.

ZATCA finalized studying the Zakat and tax returns for the said year’s and they are considered finalized..

Assessment years 2021 and 2022

The Company has filed the Zakat and Tax returns up to the years 2021 and 2022 and obtained the necessary certificates.
ZATCA has not finalized studying the Company's returns for the said yearstill to date.

VAT assessment

On 25 August 2020, the Company received an assessment from ZATCA to pay additional principal VAT of SAR 12.28
million for the years 2018 and 2019 as well as additiona fines of SAR 20.25 million for those years. In order to avoid
incurring additional fines based on ZATCA’s initiative the Company paid the principal VAT on 28 October 2020 without
prejudice to its position and objected to the items issued for the evaluation. On 20 February 2021, the Company filed an
appeal with the General Secretariat of Tax Committees (GSTC) against the decision of the ZATCA for which management
isconfident of afavorable outcome. The objected items are zero rated supplies, self-invoicing, and rei nsurance commission.

The fines imposed on the assessments amounting to SAR 20.25 million for the years 2018 and 2019 were subsequently
canceled as the Company has taken advantage of ZATCA’s initiative to stabilize the economy and boost the private sector.

The Company has booked a provision against VAT on zero rated supplies. On other objected items, the Company is
confident that these will be recovered through input claim inthe VAT return and from reinsurer.

25. Basic and diluted earnings/ (losses) per share
Basic and diluted earnings / (losses) per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are calculated by dividing

total profit / loss for the year attributabl e to the shareholders by the weighted average number of outstanding shares during
the year.
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26. Related party transactions and balances

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company, and companies of
which they are principal owners and any other entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by them
(effiliated entities). Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Company’s management and Board
of Directors. The following are the details of the major related party transactions during the year and the related balances:

Amount of transactionsfor the

Nature of transactions year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
SAR’000 SAR’000
Major shareholders
Haji Hussien Ali Reza Premium written 7,315 6,298
Payments received (8,155) (1,978)
Claims paid (825) (4,847)
Saudi Bin Laden — Group Premium written 147,707 262,009
Payments received (138,856) (263,089)
Claims paid (2,140) (1,358)
Construction Produce Company Premium written 1,741 9,504
Payments received (727) (6,891)
Claims paid - (1,162)

26.1 RELATED PARTIESBALANCES

Premium receivable

Haji Hussein Ali Reza

Saudi Bin Laden — Group
Construction Product Company

Other balances
United Commercial Agencies

Balancereceivable/ (payable) as at

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

SAR’000 SAR’000
2,641 4,306

44,145 37,434

6,283 5,269

53,069 47,009

4 4

4 4

Key management personnel are persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Company, directly or indirectly and comprise top management executives including the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The transactions with related parties are carried out at commercial
terms and conditions. Compensation to key management personnel is based on employment terms and as per the by-laws of

the Company.

The compensation of key management personnel during the year ended is as follows:

Salaries and benefits
Employees’ benefit obligations

Remuneration to those charged with governance
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27. Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction takes place either:

- intheaccessible principal market for the asset or liability, or
- intheabsence of aprincipal market, in the most advantages accessible market for the asset or liability.

Thefair values of on-balance sheet financial instrumentsare not significantly different from their carrying amountsincluded
in these financial statements.

a) Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1 - quoted pricesin active markets for the same or identical instrument that an entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2 - quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all
significant inputs are based on observable market data; and

Level 3 - valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data. The Company
ascertains the Level 3 fair values based on a vauation technique which is primarily derived by net assets value of the
respective investee at the year end.

b) Carrying amountsand fair value

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets, including their levels in the fair value
hierarchy for financia instruments measured at fair value. It does not include fair value information for financial asset and
liahilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation to fair value, as these are either
short-term in nature or carry interest rates which are based on prevalent market interest rates.

31 December 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investment measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Equity - - 43,463 43,463

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
("FVTPL")

Discretionary portfolio 246 - - 246
Total investments 246 - 43,463 43,709
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27. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

31 December 2022 — Restated

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Total

Investment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI)

Equity - - 39,703

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL")
Discretionary portfolio 23,890 - -

39,703

23,890

Total investments 23,890 - 39,703

63,593

(c) Reconciliation of recurring fair value measur ements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

31 December 31 December 2022

2023 (Restated)

Balance at the beginning of the year 39,703 37,028
Fair value gain 3,760 2,675
Balance at the end of the year 43,463 39,703
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27. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

d) Thebelow table showssignificant unobservable inputsused in the valuation of level 3investmentsand their respective sensitivities.

The below table shows significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation of level 3 investments.

Fair value Unobservableinputs Range of inputs

Relationship of Unobservable

input to Fair value

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 2023
2023 2022 - Restated 2023 2022

31 December
2022

Earnings Earnings

0,
growth factor growth factor 6.9%

13.7%

Reducing the  Earnings
growth factor to 5%, would
decrease the fair value by
SAR 0.8 million. (2022:
Reducing the  Earnings
growth factor to 10%, would
decrease the fair value by
SAR 1.2 million)

Unquoted equity
investment in
Ngym 43,463 39,703 WACC WACC 16.5%

16.0%

Increasing the WACC by 100
basis points, would decrease
the fair vaue by SAR 1.2
million. (2022: SAR 1.1
million)

Terminal vdlue  Terminal value

0,
growth rate growth rate 1.5%

1.5%

Reducing the termina value
growth rate to 0.5%, would
decrease the fair value by
SAR 0.7 million. (2022: SAR
0.7 million)

There were no significant inter-rel ationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.
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27. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
€) Valuation process

The finance department of the Company performs the valuations of level 3 fair values required for financial reporting
purposes. This team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Investment Committee and the Audit
Committee. Discussions of val uation processes and results are held between the CFO, AC, Investment Committee and
the Finance team regularly. The main level 3 inputs used by the Company are derived and evaluated as follows:

e Discount rates are determined using a capital asset pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

e Terminal value growth rate is derived from publicly available databases.

e Earnings growth factors for unlisted equity securities are estimated based on such Company’s own historical results.

28. Risk management
Risk governance

The Company’s risk governance is manifested in a set of established policies, procedures and controls which uses the
existing organizational structure to meet strategic targets. The Company’s philosophy revolves on willing and
knowledgeabl e risk acceptance commensurate with the risk appetite and strategic plan approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company. The Company is exposed to insurance, reinsurance, regulatory framework, credit, liquidity, foreign
currency, commission rate, and market risk.

Risk management structure:
A cohesive organizational structure is established within the Company in order to identify, assess, monitor, and control
risks.

Board of directors:
The apex of risk governance is the centralized oversight of Board of Directors providing direction and the necessary
approvals of strategies and policiesin order to achieve defined corporate goals.

Audit committee and internal audit department:

The internal audit department performs risk assessments with senior management annually. The internal audit department
examines both adequacy of procedures and the Company’s compliance with the procedures through regular audits. Audit
findings and recommendations are reported directly to the Audit Committee.

Senior management:
Senior management is responsible for the day to day operations towards achieving the strategic goals within the Company’s
pre-defined risk appetite.

Risk management committee:

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee, which oversees the risk
management function of the Company and report to Board on a periodic basis. This committee operates under framework
established by the Board of Directors.

The primary objective of the Company’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the Company from events
that hinder the sustainable achievement of financial performance objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities.

Therisks faced by the Company and the manner in which these risks are mitigated by management are summarized below:
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28. Risk management (continued)
28.1 Insurancerisk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the timing
thereof, differ from expectations. Thisis influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and
subsequent devel opment of long-term claims. For longer tail claimsthat take some yearsto settle, thereisalso inflation risk.
Therefore, the objective of the Company isto ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. The variability of
risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, structured claims
management, quarterly review of reserves as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

Further, strict claim review policies to assess al new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling
procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are established to reduce the risk exposure of the
Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly settling claims, in order to reduce its
exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the business. I nflation risk is mitigated by taking
expected inflation into account when estimating insurance contract liabilities and pricing appropriately.

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation program. Reinsurance ceded is placed on both a
proportional and non-proportional basis. The mgjority of proportional reinsurance is quota-share reinsurance whichistaken
out to reduce the overall exposure of the Company to certain classes of business. Non-proportional reinsurance is primarily
excess-of-loss reinsurance designed to mitigate the Company’s net exposure to catastrophe losses. Retention limits for the
excess-of-loss reinsurance vary by product line and territory.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and arein
accordance with the reinsurance contracts. Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its
direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that
any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance arrangements. The Company’s placement of
reinsurance is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company
substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract.

(&) Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like natural disasters, flood, environmental and
economical, atmospheric disturbances, concentration of risks, civil riots etc. The Company manages this risk through the
measures described above. The company has limited its risk by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts as
well as the use of reinsurance arrangementsin order to limit exposure to catastrophic events (e.g., hurricanes, earthquakes
and flood damage). The purpose of these underwriting and reinsurance strategiesisto limit exposure to catastrophes based
on the Company’s risk appetite as decided by management. The Board of Directors may decide to increase or decrease the
maximum tol erances based on market conditions and other factors. The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks
primarily by class of business.

(b) Concentration of insurancerisk

The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks primarily by class of business. The mgjor concentration lies in
medical and motor segments.

The Company also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same geographical location.
For flood or earthquake risk, acomplete city is classified asasingle location. For fire and property risk a particular building
and neighbouring buildings, which could be affected by a single claim incident, are considered as a single location.
Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyage are considered as a single risk while assessing
concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the concentration of exposures to individual and cumulative insurance risks
and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposuresto levels acceptable to the Company.

Since the Company operates primarily in Saudi Arabia, hence, al the insurance risks relate to policies written in Saudi
Arabia.
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28. Risk management (continued)
28.1 Insurancerisk (continued)

(c) Reinsurance Risk

In order to minimize financial exposure arising from large claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters
into agreements with other parties for reinsurance purposes.

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition
of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic
characteristics of the reinsurers.

Reinsurers are selected using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Company’s Board of Directors. The criteria
may be summarized as follows:

- Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies (e.g. S& P) that is not lower than BBB or equivalent;
- Reputation of particular reinsurance companies; and
- Existing or past business relationship with the reinsurer.

Furthermore, the financial strength and manageria and technical expertise as well as historical performance of the
reinsurers, wherever applicable, are thoroughly reviewed by the Company and agreed to pre-set requirements of the
Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance Committee before approving them for reinsurance business. As at 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022 there is no significant concentration of reinsurance balances.

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders and as a result the Company
remains liable for the portion of insurance contract liabilities reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet the
obligations under the reinsurance agreements.

There is no single counterparty exposure that exceeds 10% of total reinsurance assets at the reporting date.

The nature of the Company’s exposure to insurance risks and its objectives, policies and processes used to manage and
measure the risks have not changed from the previous year.

The following tables show the concentration of net insurance contract liabilities by type of contract:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Reinsurance Insurance

Insurance contracts contracts Reinsurance
contractsissued held Net issued contracts held Net
Medical 47,034 496 47,530 68,208 (22,061) 46,147

Motor-

Comprehensive 10,822 10,286 21,108 14,697 (15,502) (805)
Motor-TPL 206,564 5,340 211,904 146,125 (23,709) 122,416
Energy 13,077 (5,959) 7,118 19,079 (11,602) 7,477
Engineering 9,017 25,932 34,949 175,079 (55,005) 120,074
Others (629) (8,386) (9,015) 16,627 (19,507) (2,880)
Total 285,885 27,709 313,594 439,815 (147,386) 292,429

(d) Sensitivitieson major assumptions consider ed while applying IFRS 17

The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit / loss before zakat and equity for
reasonably possible movementsin key assumptionswith all other assumptions held constant. The correlation of assumptions
will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impacts, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in each
assumption, assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these assumptions
are non-linear. The method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant assumptions did not change from the
previous year. The impact of sensitivities to changesin discount rates is minimal therefore not presented.

Following are the sendtivities derived for the portfolios computed under PAA approach before risk mitigation by
reinsurance contracts held:
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28. Risk management (continued)

28.1  Insurancerisk (continued)

(d) Sensitivitieson major assumptions considered while applying IFRS 17 (continued)

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Impact on equity and net income of changein claimsratio
5% Increase (7,844) (6,742)
5% Decrease 7,844 6,742
Impact on equity and net income of changein direct
expense ratio — loss component
2% Increase (4048) (1,388)
2% Decrease 4,048 1,388
Impact on eguity and net income of changein risk
adjustment for non-financial risk
5% Increase (256) (354)
5% Decrease 256 354

Following are the sensitivities derived for the portfolios computed under PAA approach after risk mitigation by reinsurance
contracts held:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
I mpact on equity and net income of changein claimsratio
5% Increase (1,465) (1,996)
5% Decrease 1,465 1,996
Impact on equity and net income of changein direct
expenseratio — loss component
2% Increase (1,418) (1,000)
2% Decrease 1,418 1,000
Impact on equity and net income of changein risk
adjustment for non-financial risk
5% Increase (56) (115)
5% Decrease 56 115

(e) Claimsdevelopment table

The following tables show the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and IBNR for each
successive accident year at each reporting date, together with cumulative payments to date. As required by IFRS 17, in
setting claims provisions, the Company gives consideration to the probability and magnitude of future experience being
more adverse than assumed which isreflected in the risk adjustment.

In general, the uncertainty associated with the ultimate cost of settling claimsis greatest when the claim is at an early stage
of development. As claims develop, the ultimate cost of claims becomes more certain.

The Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against adverse
future claims experience and developments. Claims triangulation analysis is by accident years, spanning a number of
financial years.
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28. Risk management (continued)
28.1 Insurancerisk (continued)

(e) Claimsdevelopment table (continued)

2023

Accident year

Undiscounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims, gross of
reinsurance:

At end of accident year
1 year later

2 years later

3 years later

4 years later

Gross estimates of the undiscounted amount of the
claims

Cumulative gross claims and other incurred insurance
service expenses paid

Gross undiscounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims
Gross undiscounted liabilities for other incurred insurance
service expenses

Effect of surplus distribution payable

Effect of discounting
Grossdiscounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims excluding
risk adjustment

Effect of the risk adjustment margin for non-financial risk
Grossliabilitiesfor incurred claims

Undiscounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims, net of
reinsurance:

At end of accident year

1 year later

2 years later

3 years later

4 years later

Net estimates of the undiscounted amount of the claims
Cumulative net claims and other directly attributable
expenses paid

Net undiscounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims
Net undiscounted ligbilities for other incurred insurance
Sservice expenses

Effect of surplus distribution payable

Effect of discounting
Net discounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims excluding
risk adjustment

Effect of the risk adjustment margin for non-financial risk

Net liabilitiesfor incurred claims

2019 &
earlier 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total
2243857 235192 299,043 319,674 513,804 3,611,570
2092563 221433 258,913 352,757 - 2,925,666
1,992,075 184349 259,706 - - 2,436,130
1794678 184,551 - - - 1,979,229
1,452,661 - - - - 1,452,661
1452661 184551 259,706 352,757 513,804 2,763,479
(1,449,726)  (183767)  (258541)  (345451)  (374654)  (2,612,139)
2,935 784 1,165 7,306 139,150 151,340
69,669
834
(5,955)
215,888
9,858
225,746
1,200,882 120054 191,191 248,259 451,991 2,212,377
1155966 114371 184,060 274,405 - 1,728,802
1133760 112271 184,727 - - 1,430,758
1,104,861 112,672 - - - 1,217,533
850,964 - - - - 850,964
850,064 112672 184,727 274,405 451,991 1,874,759
(848774) (112,103)  (183852)  (269,635)  (345738) (1,760,102
2,190 569 875 4,770 106,253 114,657
68,505
834
(3,880)
180,206
6,988
187,194
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28. Risk management (continued)
28.1 Insurancerisk (continued)

(e) Claimsdevelopment table (continued)

The reconciliation of the net liabilities for incurred claims with the aggregate carrying amounts of the groups of insurance contracts and

reinsurance contracts is presented below:

Estimates of present

Risk adjustment for

value of FCF non-financial risk Total
Gross liabilities for incurred claims 215,884 9,859 225,743
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers (35,683) (2,870) (38,553)
Net liabilitiesfor incurred claims 180,201 6,989 187,190
2022 2018 &
Accident year earlier 2019 2020 2021 2022 Total
Undiscounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims, gross of
reinsurance:
At end of accident year 2,107,544 148,124 235,192 299,043 360,503 3,150,406
1 year later 1,968,927 123,635 221,433 277,083 - 2,591,078
2 years later 1,872,917 119,157 184,520 - - 2,176,594
3 years later 1,794,678 87,822 - - - 1,882,500
4 years later 1,370,948 - - - - 1,370,948
Gross estimates of the undiscounted amount of the claims 1,370,948 87,822 184,520 277,083 360,503 2,280,876
Cumulative gross claims and other incurred insurance service
expenses paid (1,366,615) (86,182)  (182,826) (256,146) (267,489)  (2,159,258)
Gross undiscounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims 4,333 1,640 1,694 20,937 93,014 121,618
Gross undiscounted liabilities for other incurred insurance service 88,305
expenses
Effect of surplus distribution payable -
Effect of discounting (6,403)
Grossdiscounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims excluding risk
adjustment 203,520
Effect of the risk adjustment margin for non-financial risk 18,945
Grossliabilitiesfor incurred claims 222,465
Undiscounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims, net of
reinsurance:
At end of accident year 1,149,774 51,109 120,054 191,191 268,817 1,780,945
1 year later 1,111,199 44,766 114,371 186,507 - 1,456,843
2 years later 1,090,095 43,665 112,385 - - 1,246,145
3 years later 1,104,861 42,146 - - - 1,147,007
4 years later 810,464 - - - - 810,464
Net estimates of the undiscounted amount of the claims 810,464 42,146 112,385 186,507 268,817 1,420,319
Cumulative net claims and other directly attributable
expenses paid (808,119) (41,689) (111,723)  (182,630)  (207,692) (1,351,853)
Net undiscounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims 2,345 457 662 3,877 61,125 68,466
Net undiscounted liabilities for other incurred insurance service
expenses 90,584
Effect of surplus distribution payable -
Effect of discounting (4,482)
Net discounted liabilitiesfor incurred claims excluding risk
adjustment 154,568
Effect of therisk adjustment margin for non-financial risk 9,102
Net liabilitiesfor incurred claims 163,670
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28. Risk management (continued)
28.1 Insurancerisk (continued)

(e) Claimsdevelopment table (continued)

The reconciliation of the net liabilities for incurred claims with the aggregate carrying amounts of the groups of insurance contracts and
reinsurance contracts is presented below:

Estimates of present Risk adjustment

value of FCF for non-financial
risk Total
Gross liahilities for incurred claims 203,520 18,945 222,465
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers (48,952) (9,843) (58,795)
Net liabilitiesfor incurred claims 154,568 9,102 163,670

28.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market commission rates
(commission rate risk) and market prices (price risk).

- The Company’s market risk policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes market risk for the
Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the Company risk
committee. The policy isreviewed regularly for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.

- Guidelines are set for asset allocation and portfolio limit structure, to ensure that assets back specific policyholders’
liabilitiesand that assets are held to deliver income and gains for policyholderswhich arein line with their expectations.

- The Company stipulates diversification benchmarks by type of instrument and geographical area.

The Board of Directors of the Company ensure that the overall market risk exposure is maintained at prudent levelsand is
consistent with the available capital. While the Board of Directors gives a strategic direction and goals, risk management
function related to market risk is mainly the responsibility of Investment Committee team. The team prepares forecasts
showing the effects of various possible changes in market conditions related to risk exposures. Thisrisk is being mitigated
through the proper selection of securities. Company maintains diversified portfolio and performs regular monitoring of
developments in related markets. In addition, the key factors that affect stock and sukuk market movements are monitored,
including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, commission rate risk and other price risk.

a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Management assesses that there is minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuations and, consequently, the
Company does not hedge its foreign currency exposure. The Company has transactions in Saudi Riyals and US Dollars
which are pegged and hence there is no currency risk exposure to the Company.

b) Commission raterisk
Commission rate risk is the risk that the value of future cash flows of afinancial instrument will change because of change
in market commission rates.

The Company invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to commission rate risk. Commission rate risk to the
Company is the risk of changes in commission rates reducing the overall return on its fixed commission rate bearing
securities. The Commission rate risk is limited by monitoring changes in commission rates and by investing in floating rate
instruments.
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28. Risk management (continued)
28.2 Market risk (continued)

Floating rate instruments expose the Company to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose the
Company to fair value commission rate risk.

There is no direct contractual relationship between financial assets and insurance and reinsurance contracts. However, the
Company’s interest rate risk policy requiresit to manage the extent of net commission rate risk by maintai ning an appropriate
mix of fixed and variable rate instruments to support the insurance contract liabilities. The Company has no significant
concentration of interest rate risk.

The Company is exposed to commission rate risk through its debt instruments held, deposits and in respect of liabilities or
assets for incurred claims where cash flows are not expected to be settled within a year from when claims are incurred.

The Company’s exposure to commission rate risk sensitive insurance and reinsurance contracts, deposits and debt
instruments are, as follows:

2023 2022 — Restated
Insurance contract liabilities, net 285,885 439,815
Reinsurance contract assets, net - 147,386
Reinsurance contract liabilities, net 27,709 -
Debt instruments at amortized cost 231,154 229,216

The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all other variables held
constant, showing the impact on profit/(loss) before zakat and impact on equity. The correlation of variables will have a
significant effect in determining the ultimate impact of commission rate risk, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes
in variables, variables had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these variables are
non-linear. The method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables has not changed from the
previous year.

2023 2022

Changesin  Impact on Impact on
commission profitbefore Impacton  profitbefore  Impacton
rate zakat equity zakat equity
Insurance contract liabilities, net +/-2% 5,718 5,718 8,796 8,796
Reinsurance contract assets, net +/-2% - - 2,948 2,948
Reinsurance contract liabilities, net +/-2% 554 554 - -
Debt instruments at amortized cost +/-2% 4,623 4,623 4,584 4,584

The commission and non-commission bearing investments of the Company and their maturities as at 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022 are as follows:

Morethan 1 Non-commission
Lessthan 1 year year bearing Total
31 December 2023 101,041 130,113 43,709 274,863
31 December 2022 - 229,216 39,703 268,919

An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest yields would result in an increase / (decrease) in the profit or loss for
the year of SAR 2.3 million (31 December 2022: SAR 2.3 million).
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28. Risk management (continued)

28.2 Market risk (continued)
) Other pricerisk

Other pricerisk isthe risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments or insurance contract assets and /
or liabilities will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from commission rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financia instrument or contract, or by
factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company’s price risk exposure relates to financial assets and financial liabilities whose values will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market prices. The Company does not issue any participating contracts. Therefore, there are no insurance or
reinsurance contracts which are exposed to price risk. The Company’s investments amounting to SAR 84.8 million (31
December 2022: SAR 60.5 million) are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainty about the future value of
invested securities. The Company limits this nature of market risk by diversifying its invested portfolio and by actively
monitoring the developments in markets.

The impact of a hypothetical change of a 10% increase and 10% decrease in the market prices of investments on
comprehensive income would be as follows:

Fair value change Effect on Company’s pr ofit
31 December 2023 +/- 10% +/-4,396
31 December 2022 +/- 10% +/-6,359

The sensitivity analysis presented is based upon the portfolio position as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. Accordingly, the
sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Company's assets of future movementsin the
value of investments held by the Company. The method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables
has not changed from the previous year.

28.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financia instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party
toincur afinancia loss. For al classes of financial instruments held by the Company, the maximum credit risk exposure to
the Company isthe carrying value as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

The Company only enters into insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognised, credit worthy third parties. It is the
Company’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivables from insurance and reinsurance contracts are monitored on an ongoing basis in order to reduce the
Company’s exposure to bad debts.

The Company seeks to limit credit risk with respect to agents and brokers by setting credit limits for individual agents and
brokers and monitoring outstanding receivables.

The Company’s investment portfolio is managed by the investment committee in accordance with the investment policy
established by the investment committee, which is approved by the Board of Directors.

The Company’s other financial assets are held with commercial banks and financial institutions with strong financial
positions and credit ratings. The Company’s policy is to invest in high-quality, liquid (that is, investment-grade) financial
instruments. The Company maintains its bank balances, short-term, long term and statutory deposits with banks which have
investment grade credit ratings. Investments are made in instruments with either investment grade or satisfactory non-
investment grade credit rating.
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28. Risk management (continued)

28.3 Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position:

Cash and cash equivalents
Term deposits

Reinsurance contract assets
Investments

Statutory deposit

Accrued income on statutory deposit

Staff and other receivables

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
(Restated)

122,279 83,964
101,041 -
- 147,386
173,822 292,809
59,989 59,989
1,558 6,711
10,848 3,227
469,537 594,086

The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company by classifying assets according to
the management’s best estimate. Investment grade is considered to be the highest possible rating. Assets falling outside the
range of investment grade are classified as non-investment grade satisfactory or past due but not impaired.

31 December 2023

Cash and cash equivalents

Term deposits

Investments

Reinsurance contract assets

Statutory deposit

Accrued commission income on
statutory deposit

Staff receivables

31 December 2023

31 December 2022 - (Restated)

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Reinsurance contract assets
Statutory deposit

Accrued income on statutory deposit
Staff and other receivables

31 December 2022

Non-investment grade

Past due

Past due and

Investment but not impaired
grade Satisfactory impaired Total
122,279 - - - 122,279
101,041 - - - 101,041
173,822 - - - 173,822
59,989 - - 59,989
1,558 - - 1,558
- 10,848 - - 10,848
458,689 10,848 - - 469,537

Non-investment grade

Past due and

Past due but impaired
Investment grade Satisfactory not impaired Total
83,964 - - - 83,964
292,809 - - - 292,809
- 147,386 - - 147,386
59,989 - - - 59,989
6,711 - - - 6,711
- 3,227 - - 3,227
443,473 150,613 - - 594,086
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28. Risk management (continued)
28.3 Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure. All of the Company’s
underwriting activities are carried out in Saudi Arabia. The Company’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly
diversified, and transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant
concentrations of credit risk.

28.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk isthe risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet obligations and commitments
associated with financia liabilities. The Company has a proper cash management system, where daily cash collections and
payments are strictly monitored and reconciled on regular basis. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities and investing in liquid financial assets. Further, the Company manages
liquidity risk asfollows:

- The Company’s liquidity risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes liquidity risk
for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the Company
risk committee. The policy isregularly reviewed for pertinence and for changesin the risk environment.

- Guidelines are set for asset allocations, portfolio limit structures and maturity profiles of assets, in order to ensure
sufficient funding available to meet insurance and investment contracts obligations.

- Contingency funding plans are in place, which specify minimum proportions of funds to meet emergency calls as well
as specifying events that would trigger such plans.

- The Company’s catastrophe excess-of-l0ss reinsurance contracts contain clauses permitting the immediate draw down
of funds to meet claim payments should claim events exceed a certain size.

The table below summarizes the maturities of the Company’s undiscounted contractual obligations relating to financial
assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Morethan

Financial assets L essthan 12 months 12 months Total
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(“FVTPL”) 246 - 246
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income (“FVOCI”) - 43,463 43,463
Financial assets at amortised cost - 130,113 130,113
Statutory deposit - 59,989 59,989
Accrued income on statutory deposit 1,558 - 1,558
Term deposits 101,041 - 101,041
Cash and cash equivalents 122,279 - 122,279
31 December 2023 225,124 233,565 458,689
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28. Risk management (continued)

28.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

Morethan 12

Financial liabilities Lessthan 12 months months Total
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 20,352 - 20,352
Accrued income on statutory deposit 1,558 - 1,558
31 December 2023 21,910 - 21,910
More than 12
Financial assets Lessthan 12 months months Total
Financia assets at fair value through profit or loss 23,890 - 23,890
(“FVTPL”)
Financial assets at fair value through other - 39,703 39,703
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
Financial assets at amortised cost - 229,216 229,216
Statutory deposit - 59,989 59,989
Accrued income on statutory deposit 6,711 - 6,711
Term deposits - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 83,964 - 83,964
31 December 2022 - (Restated) 114,565 328,908 443,473
Morethan 12
Financial liabilities Lessthan 12 months months Total
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 16,534 - 16,534
Accrued income on statutory deposit 6,711 - 6,711
31 December 2022 - (Restated) 23,245 - 23,245
Insurance Above 5
contractsissued Up to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years 3-4 years 4-5years years
M edical 10,822 - - - -
M otor 219,641 - - - -
Others 55,422 - - - -
31 December 2023 285,885 - - - -
Reinsurance Above 5
contracts held Uptolyear 1-2 years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years years
M edical 10,286 - - - -
M otor (619) - - - -
Others 18,042 - - - -
31 December 2023 27,709 - - - -

109



UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals 000 unless otherwise stated)

28. Risk management (continued)

28.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

Insurance contracts Above5
issued Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years years
Medical 14,697 - - - - -
Motor 165,204 - - - - -
Others 259,914 - - - - -
31 December 2022 439,815 - - - - -
Reinsurance Above 5
contracts held Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years years
Medical 15,502 - - - - -
Motor 35,311 - - - - -
Others 96,573 - - - - -
31 December 2022 147,386 - - - - -

To manage the liquidity risk arising from financial liabilities mentioned above, the Company holds liquid assets comprising
cash and cash equivalents and investment securities. These assets can be readily sold to meet liquidity requirements.

The assets with maturity less than one year are expected to realize as follows:

«  Fair value through profit or loss investments includes investments in mutual funds and Murabaha placements and are
held for cash management purposes and expected to be matured/ settled within 12 months from the balance sheet date.

«  Term deposits classified as includes deposits placed with high credit rating financial institutions with maturity of less
than twelve months from the date of placement.

»  Cash and bank balances are available on demand.

* Reinsurers contract assets mainly pertain to property and casualty segment and are generaly realized within 6 to 9
months based on settlement of claims.

The liabilities with maturity less than one year are expected to settle as follows:

» Reinsurers contract liabilities are settled on a periodic basis as per terms of reinsurance agreements.

+ Majority of insurance contract liabilities are expected to be settled within 12 months in accordance with statutory
timelines for payment. Property and casualty policies due to the inherent nature are generally settled within 12 months
from the date of receipt of loss adjustor report.

» Accrued expenses and other liabilities are expected to settle within a year of 12 months from the year end date except
for end of services benefits.

+  Surplusdistribution payableis to be settled within 6 months of annual general meeting in which financial statementsare
approved.

29. Capital management

Objectives are set by the Company to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives and maximize
shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital requirements by assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a
regular basis. Adjustments to current capital levels are made in light of changes in market conditions and risk characteristics
of the Company’s activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amounts of
dividends paid to shareholders or issue shares.

The Company manages its capital to ensurethat it is able to continue as going concern and comply with the regulators’ capital
requirements of the markets in which the Company operates while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the
optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to equity
holders comprising paid share capital, reserves and retained earnings.
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29. Capital management (continued)

As per guidelines laid out by Insurance Authority (IA) previousy known as SAMA in Article 66 of the Insurance
Implementing Regulations detailing the solvency margin required to be maintained, the Company shall maintain solvency
margin equivalent to the highest of the following three methods as per Insurance I mplementing Regulations:

. Minimum capital requirement
. Premium solvency margin; or
. Claims solvency margin

The equity as at 31 December 2023 consists of paid-up share capital of SAR 400 million, accumulated losses of SAR 180.56
million, fair value revaluation reserve of SAR 41.54 million and remeasurement reserve of employees’ benefit obligations of
4.18 million (31 December 2022: paid-up share capital of SAR 400 million, accumulated losses of SAR 185.85 million, fair
value revaluation reserve of SAR 37.8 million and remeasurement reserve of employees’ benefit obligations of 4.23 million),
in the statement of financial position.

The amendment made to the Co-operative Insurance Companies Law in accordance with the Royal Decree (M/12) dated
23/1/1443H (corresponding to 1 September 2021) requiresthe minimum capital of insurance companiesto be SAR 300 million
by 15 December 2024. Currently, the Company isin compliance with the minimum capital required for an insurance company.

30. Grosswritten premium

Detailsrelating to gross written premium are disclosed below to comply with the requirements of 1A and are not calcul ated
as per the requirements of IFRS 17.

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Breakdown of GWP M edical Motor Others Total
Retail 15,285 488,010 92 503,387
Very small 7,377 2,851 2,678 12,906
Small 23,369 5,792 9,355 38,516
Medium 27,331 1,351 2,989 31,671
Corporate 30,676 162,012 250,252 442,940
Total 104,038 660,016 265,366 1,029,420

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Breakdown of GWP M edical M otor Others Total
Retail 5,514 207,565 217 213,296
Very small 22,672 10,669 1,016 34,357
Small 27,809 30,560 11,795 70,164
Medium 18,680 2,186 14,002 34,868
Corporate 6,186 70,960 392,013 469,159
Total 80,861 321,940 419,043 821,844
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31 Net written premium

Details relating to net written premium are disclosed below to comply with the requirements of 1A and are not calculated as
per the requirements of IFRS 17.

For theyear ended 31

December 2023
Item Medical Motor Others Total
Gross written premium 104,038 660,016 265,366 1,029,420

Reinsurance premium ceded —
globally (including excess of

loss) (2,288) (1,312 (245,557) (249,157)
Reinsurance premium ceded —

locally (including excess of 10ss) (20,402) (8,933 (17,883) (47,218)
Net written premium - total 81,348 649,771 1,926 733,045
For the year ended 31

December 2022

[tem Medica Motor Others Total
Gross written premium 80,861 321,940 419,043 821,844

Reinsurance premium ceded —
globally (including excess of

loss) (4,292) (65,294) (381,239) (450,825)
Reinsurance premium ceded —

locally (including excess of 10ss) (1,024) (32,555) (31,563) (65,142)
Net written premium - total 75,545 224,091 6,241 305,877
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32. Supplementary infor mation
Asrequired by the |A Implementing Regulations, the statement of financial position, statement of income and statement of cash flows are separately disclosed for both insurance
operations and shareholders’ operations as follows:

a) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2022 1 January 2022
31 December 2023 (Restated) (Restated)
Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’

operations operations Total operations operations Total operations operations Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 95,227 27,052 122,279 81,223 2,741 83,964 87,051 702 87,753
Term deposits - 101,041 101,041 - - - - - -
Investments:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) 246 - 246 23,890 - 23,890 25,213 - 25,213
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) - 43,463 43,463 - 39,703 39,703 - 37,032 37,032
Financial assets at amortised cost 91,518 38,595 130,113 66,025 163,191 229,216 102,486 127,093 229,579
Prepaid expenses and other assets 51,131 6,928 58,059 47,276 1,636 48,912 40,794 1,222 42,016
Reinsurance contract assets - - - 147,386 - 147,386 158,827 - 158,827
Right-of-use assets 4,161 - 4,161 6,178 - 6,178 7,089 - 7,089
Property and equipment 7,343 - 7,343 10,482 - 10,482 9,122 - 9,122
Intangible assets 23,194 - 23,194 12,715 - 12,715 9,813 - 9,813
Goodwill - 78,400 78,400 - 78,400 78,400 - 78,400 78,400
Statutory deposit - 59,989 59,989 - 59,989 59,989 - 59,989 59,989
Accrued income on statutory deposit - 1,558 1,558 - 6,711 6,711 - 5,395 5,395
Due from shareholders’ operations 78,513 - 78,513 77,861 77,861 17,315 17,315
TOTAL ASSETS 351,333 357,026 708,359 473,036 352,371 825,407 457,710 309,833 767,543
Less: Inter-operations eliminations (78,513) - (78,513) (77,861) - (77,861) (17,315) (17,315)
TOTAL ASSETSASPER STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION 272,820 357,026 629,846 395,175 352,371 747,546 440,395 309,833 750,228

113



UNITED COOPERATIVE ASSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(All amounts expressed in Saudi Riyals 000 unless otherwise stated)

32. Supplementary infor mation (continued)

a) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

LIABILITIES

Insurance contract liabilities
Reinsurance contract liabilities
Accrued and other liabilities
Leaseliabilities

Employees’ benefit obligations
Provision for zakat and income tax
Accrued income payableto 1A
Due to insurance operations
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Less: Inter-operations eliminations
TOTAL LIABILITIESASPER STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2022 1 January 2022

31 December 202: (Restated) (Restated)

Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’
oper ations oper ations Total operations operations Total operations operations Total
285,885 - 285,885 439,815 - 439,815 386,406 - 386,406
27,709 - 27,709 - - - - - -
18,242 2,110 20,352 13,469 3,065 16,534 17,524 2,170 19,694
3,777 - 3,777 5,841 - 5,841 6,187 - 6,187
11,543 - 11,543 9,686 - 9,686 10,029 - 10,029
- 13,867 13,867 - 12,808 12,808 - 14,846 14,846
- 1,558 1,558 - 6,711 6,711 - 5,395 5,395
- 78,513 78,513 - 77,861 77,861 - 17,315 17,315
347,156 17,535 364,691 468,811 22,584 491,395 420,146 22,411 442 557
- (78,513) (78,513) - (77,861) (77,861) - (17,315) (17,315)
347,156 17,535 364,691 468,811 22,584 491,395 420,146 22,411 442 557
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32.

a) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

Supplementary infor mation (continued)

31 December 2022

1 January 2022
31 December 2023 (Restated) (Restated)
Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’
oper ations oper ations Total operations operations Total operations operations Total
EQUITY
Share capita - 400,000 400,000 - 400,000 400,000 - 400,000 400,000
Statutory reserve - - - - - - - - -
Accumulated losses ; (180,562) (180,562) - (185,854)  (185,854) - (130,372) (130,372)
Fair value reserve for investment - 41,540 41,540 - 37,780 37,780 - 35,109 35,109
Remeasurement reserve of employees’ benefit
obligations 4177 - 4,177 4,225 - 4,225 2,934 - 2,934
TOTAL EQUITY 4177 260,978 265,155 4,225 251,926 256,151 2,934 304,737 307,671
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY 351,333 278,513 629,846 473,036 274,510 747,546 423,080 327,148 750,228
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32. Supplementary infor mation (continued)

b) STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

2023 2022 -
(Restated)
Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’
operations operations Total operations operations Total
REVENUES
Insurance revenue 1,061,771 - 1,061,771 634,333 - 634,333
Insurance service expenses (625,322) - (625,322) (339,671) - (339,671)
Net expensesfrom reinsurance contracts (409,332) - (409,332) (337,632 - (337,632)
Insurance service result from Company’s directly written business 27,117 - 27,117 (42,970) - (42,970)
Share of surplusfrom insurance pools 13,833 - 13,833 14,196 - 14,196
Total insurance serviceresult 40,950 - 40,950 (28,774) - (28,774)
Commission income from financial assets not measured at FV TPL 3,727 5,686 9,413 3,153 4,958 8,113
Net gains on financial assets measured at FVTPL 14 727 741 6 (1,328) (1,323)
Dividend income - - - 187 - 187
Net investment income 3,741 6,413 10,154 3,346 3,630 6,977
Finance (costs) / income from insurance contracts issued (4,709) - (4,709) 1,812 - 1,812
Finance income/ (costs) from reinsurance contracts held 2,016 - 2,016 (212) - (212)
Net insurance finance (costs) / income (2,693) - (2,693) 1,600 - 1,600
Net insurance and investment result 41,998 6,413 48,411 (23,828) 3,630 (20,197)
Other income 4,767 - 4,767 1,160 - 1,160
Other operating expenses (39,257) (4,359) (43,616) (28,187) (5,257) (33,445)
Profit / (loss) for the year before zakat and income tax 7,508 2,054 9,562 (50,855) (1,627) (52,482)
Zakat and income tax expense - (4,270) (4,270) - (3,000) (3,000)
NET PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 7,508 (2,216) 5,292 (50,855) (4,627) (55,482)
THE SHAREHOLDERS
Basic and diluted earnings/ (losses) per share) - - 0.13 - - (2.39)

(expressed in Saudi Riyals per share)
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32. Supplementary infor mation (continued)

c) STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

NET PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS

Other comprehensiveincome

Itemsthat will not bereclassified to statement of incomein
subsequent years

Net changesin fair value of investment measured at FVOCI — equity
instruments

Remeasurement (loss) / gain on employees’ benefit obligations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

2022 -
2023 (Restated)

Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’
operations operations Total operations operations Total
7,508 (2,216) 5,292 (50,855) (4,627) (55,482)
- 3,760 3,760 - 2,671 2,671
(48) - (48) 1,291 - 1,291
7,460 1,544 9,004 (49,564) (1,956) (51,520)
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32. Supplementary infor mation (continued)

d) STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Total profit / (loss) attribution before zakat
Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation of property and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation for right-of-use assets

Finance costs on lease liabilities

Net impairment losses on financial assets

Unrealized (gain) / loss on financial assets measured at FV TPL
Reslized (gain) / loss on financial assets measured at FV TPL
Commission income from financial assets measured at amortised cost
Provision for employees’ benefit obligations

(Gain) / loss on disposal of property and equipment

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Changes in reinsurance contract assets
Accrued and other liabilities

Changes in insurance contract liabilities
Changes in reinsurance contract liabilities
Dueto / (from) insurance operations

Employees’ benefit obligations paid
Zakat paid
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

2023 2022 — (Restated)

Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’
operations operations Total operations operations Total
7,508 2,054 9,562 (50,855) (1,627) (52,482)
3,339 - 3,339 4,162 - 4,162
1,051 - 1,051 - - -
2,686 - 2,686 2,798 - 2,798
177 - 177 238 - 238
(14) - (14) - 1,323 1,323
- (727) (727) - - -
(1,938) - (1,938) 363 - 363
2,461 2,461 2,464 - 2,464
(24) - (24) 98 - 98
15,246 1,327 16,573 (40,732) (304) (41,036)
(3,855) (5,292) (9,147) (6,482) (414) (6,896)
147,386 - 147,386 11,441 - 11,441
4773 (955) 3,818 (4,055) 895 (3,160)
(153,930) - (153,930) 53,409 - 53,409
27,709 - 27,709 - - .
(8,057) 8,057 - (6,900) 6,900 -
29,272 3,137 32,409 6,681 7,077 13,758
(652) - (652) (1,516) - (1,516)
- (3,211) (3,211) - (5,038) (5,038)
28,620 (74) 28,546 5,165 2,039 7,204
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32. Supplementary infor mation (continued)

d) STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER (continued)

CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of investments held at FV TPL
Commission income received from financial assets at
amortised cost

Payments for purchases of property and equipment
Payments for purchases of intangible assets

Proceed from disposal of property and equipment

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities
Principa elements of |ease payments

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increasein cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2023 2022 - (Restated)

Insurance Shareholders Insurance Shareholders
operations ’ operations Total operations > operations Total
- 24,385 24,385 - - -
(5,462) - (5,462) (5,522) - (5,522)
(6,268) - (6,268) (2,902 - (2,902)
24 - 24 - - -
(11,706) 24,385 12,679 (8.424) - (8,424)
(2,910) - (2,910) (2,569) - (2,569)
(2,910) - (2,910) (2,569) - (2,569)
14,004 24,311 38,315 (5,828) 2,039 (3,789)
81,223 2,741 83,964 87,051 702 87,753
95,227 27,052 122,279 81,223 2,741 83,964
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32. Supplementary infor mation (continued)
€) Surplusdistribution

Asrequired by the Implementing Regulations and the by-laws of the Company, surplus arising from the Insurance Operationsis distributed as follows:

Transfer to Shareholders’ operations 90%
Transfer to Policyholders payable 10%
100%

In case of deficit arising from insurance operations, the entire deficit is allocated and transferred to shareholders’ operations.

The surplus payables to policyholders for the year 31 December 2023 amounts to Saudi Riyals 0.8 million (2022: Saudi Riyals: Nil) This has been allocated as follow:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Medical - -
Motor 535 -
Others 299 -
Total 834 -

33. Operating segments

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing products or services (abusiness segment), which is subject to risk and rewards that are different
from those of other segments. Segment performanceis eval uated based on profit or loss which, in certain respects, is measured differently from profit or lossin the financial statements.

The Board of Directors of the Company monitor the results of the Company’s operations and have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The net results of
the Company are reported to the Board of Directors, for the Company as a whole. Furthermore, the Company operates in one geographical areai.e. Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Accordingly, segmental analysis of the statement of income and other comprehensive income and statement of financial positionisnot carried out asthe CODM considers the Company
to be asingle operating segment based on the nature of its operations and products. However, the Company has disclosed itsinsurance related balances/results by product lines, which
are determined based on the disaggregation principles of IFRS 17. These include insurance contract liabilities/assets, reinsurance contract assets/liabilities, insurance service results
and insurance finance income/expenses. Refer Notes 10, 19 and 21 for such analysis.
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33. Operating segments (continued)

For theyear ended 31 December 2023 M edical M otor Energy Engineering Others Total
I nsurance revenue 102,752 533,323 102,363 296,103 27,230 1,061,771
I nsurance service expenses (116,204) (481,650) 2,123 (37,867) 8,276 (625,322)
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts (18,701) (37,726) (104,899 (219,701) (28,305) (409,332
Insurance service result from Company’s directly

written business (32,153) 13,947 (413) 38,535 7,201 27,117
Share of surplusfrom insurance pools 13,833
Total insurance service result 40,950
Commission income from financial assets not measured at

FVTPL 9,413
Net gains on investments measured at FVTPL 741
Net impairment losses on financia assets -
Net investment return 10,154
Net finance costs from insurance contracts (1,159) (1,649) (154) (561) (1,186) (4,709)
Net finance income from reinsurance contracts 758 (173) 63 530 838 2,016
Net insurance costs (401) (1,822) (91 (31 (348) (2,693)
Net insurance and investment result 48,411
Other income 4,767
Other operating expenses (43,616)
Profit for the year attributableto the shareholders
before zakat 9,562
Zakat (4,270)
Net profit for the year attributableto the shareholders 5,292
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33. Operating segments (continued)

For theyear ended 31 December 2022, Restated M edical M otor Energy Engineering Others Total
I nsurance revenue 100,436 221,693 142,103 134,532 35,569 634,333
Insurance service expenses (112,439) (303,607) 6,807 21,060 48,508 (339,671)
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts 7,234 17,163 (150,160) (143,562) (68,307) (337,632)
Insurance service result from Company’s directly

written business (4,769) (64,751) (1,250) 12,030 15,770 (42,970)
Share of surplusfrom insurance pools 14,196
Total insurance service result (28,774)

Commission income from financial assets not measured at

FVTPL 8,113
Net gains on investments measured at FVTPL (1,323)
Dividend income 187
Net impairment losses on financia assets -
Net investment return 6,977
Net finance costs from insurance contracts (26) 492 9 840 515 1,812
Net finance income from reinsurance contracts (16) (83) 9 (520) 398 (212
Net insurance costs (42 409 - 320 913 1,600
Net insurance and investment result (20,197)
Other income 1,160
Other operating expenses (33,445)
Lossfor theyear attributableto the shareholders
before zakat (52,482)
Zakat and income tax (3,000)
Net lossfor theyear attributable to the shareholders (55,482)
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33. Operating segments (continued)

M edical M otor Energy Engineering Others Total
31 December 2023:
Assets
Reinsurance contract - - - - - -
assets
Unallocated assets - - - - - 629,846
Total assets 629,846
Liabilities
Insurance contract 47,034 217,386 13,077 9,017 (629) 285,885
liabilities
Reinsurance contract 496 15,626 (5,959) 25,932 (8,386) 27,709
liabilities
- - - - - 51,097
Unallocated liabilities
Total liabilities 364,691
Medical M otor Energy Engineering Others Totd
31 December 2022:
Assets
Reinsurance contract 22,061 39,211 11,602 55,005 19,507 147,386
assets
Unallocated assets - - - - - 600,160
Total assets 747,546
Liabilities
Insurance contract 68,208 160,822 19,079 175,079 16,627 439,815
liabilities
Reinsurance contract
liabilities - - - - - -
Unallocated liabilities - - - - - 51,580
Total liabilities 491,395
34. Commitments and contingencies
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
SAR’000 SAR’000
Letters of guarantee issued in favour of ZATCA 22,096 22,096
Letters of guarantee issued in favour of non-government customers 300 300
22,396 22,396

a. The Company has capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2023 amounting to SAR 16.61 million (31 December
2022: SAR 16.61 million) in respect of software development project.

b. As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s bankers have given guarantees to non-government customers amounting to SAR 0.3
million (2021: SAR 0.30 million) in respect of motor insurance and to ZATCA amounting to SAR 22.09 (2022: SAR 22.09
million) in respect of a disputed assessment order (also see note 24.3) which is deposited with a bank and is included in prepaid
expenses and other assets (also see note 9).

c. Refer note 24.3 for the status of Zakat and tax assessments.
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35. Subsequent events

There have been no significant subsequent events since the year end, that would require disclosures or adjustmentsin these
financial statements.

36. Approval of the financial statements

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2024 corresponding to 07 Ramadan
1445H.
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